UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

SCHEDULE 14A

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Amendment No.)

	Filed	by the Registrant ⊠	Filed by a Party other than the Registrant □					
Check t	Check the appropriate box:							
		Preliminary Proxy Statement						
		Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))						
	X	Definitive Proxy Statement						
		Definitive Additional Materials						
		Soliciting Material Pursuant to §240.14a-12						
			CONSTRUCTION PARTNERS, INC.					
			ame of Registrant as Specified in its Charter)					
			N/A					
		(Name of Pers	on(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if Other Than the Registrant)					
Paymer	nt of F	Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box):						
	X	No fee required.						
		Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act R	ales 14a-6(i)(1) and 0-11.					
		(1) Title of each class of securities to which tr	ansaction applies:					
		(2) Aggregate number of securities to which t	ansaction applies:					
		(3) Per unit price or other underlying value of fee is calculated and state how it was deter	transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth the amount on which the filing mined):					
		(4) Proposed maximum aggregate value of tra	nsaction:					
		(5) Total fee paid:						
		Fee paid previously with preliminary materials.						
			by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee was paid ion statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.					
		(1) Amount Previously Paid:						
		(2) Form, Schedule or Registration Statement	No.:					
		(3) Filing Party:						
		(4) Date Filed:						



NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON FRIDAY, MARCH 8, 2019

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 2019 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "Annual Meeting") of Construction Partners, Inc. (the "Company") will be held on Friday, March 8, 2019, at 9:00 a.m., Central Time, at the Hilton Garden Inn, located at 171 Hospitality Lane, Dothan, Alabama 36303. The Annual Meeting is being held for the following purposes:

- to elect two Class I directors to serve for a three-year term expiring at the 2022 annual meeting of stockholders;
- to ratify the appointment of RSM US LLP as the Company's independent registered public accountants for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2019;
- 3. to transact such other business as may properly come before the Annual Meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof.

The Board of Directors has established January 7, 2019 as the record date for the Annual Meeting. Only holders of the Company's Class A or Class B common stock at the close of business on the record date are entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the Annual Meeting and at any adjournments or postponements thereof.

This proxy statement provides you with detailed information about the proposals to be voted on at the Annual Meeting. With this proxy statement, we are also including a copy of our 2018 Annual Report on Form 10-K (the "Annual Report") in order to provide you with additional information about the Company. We encourage you to read this proxy statement and the Annual Report carefully.

The Annual Meeting may be adjourned from time to time without notice other than announcement at the Annual Meeting, and any business for which notice is hereby given may be transacted at any such adjournment.

By Order of the Board of Directors.

Ned N. Fleming, III

Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors

Dothan, Alabama January 22, 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Page</u>
Explanatory Note	<u>2</u>
Important Information about the Annual Meeting and Voting	<u>2</u>
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management	7
M	0
Management and Corporate Governance	9
Our Board of Directors Information about the Nominess and Other Directors	9
Information about the Nominees and Other Directors Information about Executive Officers Who Are Not Also Directors	9
Certain Director and Executive Officer Relationships	11 12
Director Independence and Controlled Company Exemption	12
Board Leadership Structure	12
Board Observer Rights	13
Meetings of the Board	13
Committees of the Board	13
Role of the Board in Risk Oversight	16
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics	17
Corporate Governance Guidelines	17
Nomination and Consideration of Director Candidates	17
Executive Sessions	<u>19</u>
Stockholder Communications with the Board	<u>20</u>
Executive Officer and Director Compensation	21
Compensation of Executive Officers	21
Summary Compensation Table	<u>21</u>
Employment Agreements	<u>22</u>
Non-Plan Stock Options	<u>22</u>
Construction Partners, Inc. 2016 Equity Incentive Plan	<u>22</u>
Construction Partners, Inc. 2018 Equity Incentive Plan	<u>23</u>
Incentive Compensation Recoupment Policy	<u>25</u>
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End	<u>25</u>
Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans	<u>26</u>
Retirement Benefits	<u>26</u>
Potential Payments upon Termination or a Change in Control	<u>26</u>
Role of Executive Officers in Determining Executive Compensation	<u>27</u>
Role of Compensation Consultant in Determining Executive Compensation	<u>27</u>
<u>Director Compensation</u>	<u>27</u>
Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions	<u>28</u>
Review and Approval of Related Party Transactions	<u>28</u>
Transactions with Related Parties	<u>28</u>
	22
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance	<u>32</u>
Depart of the Audit Committee	22
Report of the Audit Committee	<u>33</u>

Proposal 1: Election of Class I Directors	<u>34</u>
Proposal 2: Ratification of Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accountants	<u>35</u>
<u>General</u>	<u>35</u>
Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policy	<u>35</u>
Change in Accountants	<u>35</u>
Fees Paid to RSM	<u>36</u>
Other Matters	<u>37</u>
Deadline for Stockholder Proposals	<u>37</u>
Annual Report on Form 10-K	<u>37</u>

CONSTRUCTION PARTNERS, INC.

PROXY STATEMENT FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS TO BE HELD FRIDAY, MARCH 8, 2019

This proxy statement (the "Proxy Statement"), along with the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "Notice"), is furnished on behalf of Construction Partners, Inc. (the "Company") by its board of directors (the "Board") and management team in connection with the solicitation of your proxy to be voted at the 2019 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company (the "Annual Meeting") to be held at 9:00 a.m., Central Time, on Friday, March 8, 2019, at the Hilton Garden Inn, located at 171 Hospitality Lane, Dothan, Alabama 36303, and at any adjournments or postponements thereof.

In this Proxy Statement, unless the context suggests or requires otherwise, references to "the Company," "we," "us" and "our" mean Construction Partners, Inc. (formerly known as SunTx CPI Growth Company, Inc.), a Delaware corporation, and, as appropriate, our subsidiaries. References to "SunTx" mean SunTx Capital Partners, a private equity firm based in Dallas, Texas, and its affiliates, which collectively own a controlling interest in our common stock.

We began mailing this Proxy Statement and the accompanying Notice on or about January 22, 2019 to all stockholders of the Company entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting.

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON MARCH 8, 2019

This Proxy Statement is available for viewing, downloading and printing at www.proxyvote.com. Additionally, you can find a copy of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018 (the "Annual Report"), which includes our annual financial statements, on the website of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") at http://www.sec.gov, or by following the "Investors - Financial Information" link on our website at http://www.constructionpartners.net. You may also obtain a printed copy of our Annual Report, including our financial statements, free of charge by sending a written request to the principal executive office of the Company at the following address: Construction Partners, Inc., 290 Healthwest Drive, Suite 2, Dothan, Alabama 36303, Attention: Secretary. Exhibits will be provided upon written request and payment of an appropriate processing fee.

EXPLANATORY NOTE

We are an "emerging growth company" under the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act (the "JOBS Act") and a "smaller reporting company" as defined in Rule 12b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). As such, we are permitted to take advantage of certain reduced reporting requirements that are otherwise applicable generally to public companies. These provisions include, among other things, (i) an option to present only two years of audited financial statements and related management's discussion and analysis in our Annual Report; (ii) an exemption from the requirement that our auditor attest to the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting, (iii) an exemption from compliance with any requirement that the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board may adopt regarding mandatory audit firm rotation or a supplement to the auditor's report providing additional information about the audit and the financial statements; (iv) reduced disclosure about our executive compensation arrangements; and (v) an exemption from the requirements to obtain a non-binding advisory vote on executive compensation or a stockholder approval of any golden parachute arrangements.

We have taken advantage of certain of the exemptions discussed above in this Proxy Statement, in our Annual Report and elsewhere, and we intend to continue to do so for so long as we are eligible. We will remain an emerging growth company until the earliest to occur of: (i) the last day of the fiscal year in which our total revenue exceeds \$1.07 billion, (ii) September 30, 2023, which is the last day of the fiscal year following the fifth anniversary of our initial public offering, (iii) the date on which we have, during the previous three-year period, issued more than \$1.0 billion in non-convertible debt securities and (iv) the date on which we are deemed to be a "large accelerated filer" under the Exchange Act.

IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT THE ANNUAL MEETING AND VOTING

Why am I receiving these materials?

The Board, on behalf of the Company, is providing these proxy materials to you in connection with the Annual Meeting. Stockholders are invited to attend the Annual Meeting and are requested to vote on the proposals described in this Proxy Statement. This Proxy Statement, along with the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders, summarizes the purposes of the Annual Meeting and certain information that will assist you in determining how to vote at the Annual Meeting.

Who is soliciting my proxy?

This proxy solicitation is being made on behalf of the Company by its Board and management. The cost of this solicitation, including the cost of distributing the proxy materials, will be borne by the Company. Officers and employees of the Company may solicit proxies, either through personal contact or by mail, telephone or other electronic means. These officers and employees will not receive additional compensation for soliciting proxies. Brokerage houses, nominees, fiduciaries, and other custodians will be requested to forward soliciting materials to beneficial owners and will be reimbursed by the Company for their reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in sending proxy materials to beneficial owners.

What is included in these materials?

These proxy materials include:

- the Proxy Statement for our Annual Meeting;
- a proxy card with a prepaid return envelope; and
- our Annual Report, which includes our audited financial statements.

This Proxy Statement and form of proxy are being mailed or made available to our stockholders on or about January 22, 2019. The Annual Report does not form any part of the materials for solicitation of proxies.

What proposals will be voted on at the Annual Meeting?

There are two proposals scheduled to be voted on at the Annual Meeting: (i) the election of two Class I directors to serve for a three-year term expiring at the 2022 annual meeting of stockholders (Proposal 1) and (ii) the ratification of the appointment of RSM US LLP ("RSM") as the Company's independent registered public accountants for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2019 (Proposal 2).

Who may vote at the Annual Meeting?

The Board has fixed January 7, 2019 as the record date (the "Record Date") for determining stockholders of the Company entitled to receive notice of and vote at the Annual Meeting. Only stockholders of record as of the close of business on the Record Date are entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. On the Record Date, there were 11,950,000 shares of Class A common stock, par value \$0.001, issued and outstanding, all of which were held in "street name" through a single stockholder of record, and 39,464,619 shares of Class B common stock, par value \$0.001, issued and outstanding, held by 16 stockholders of record. The actual number of beneficial holders of our Class A common stock is significantly greater than the number of stockholders of record and includes stockholders who are beneficial owners, but whose shares are held by banks, brokers and other nominees.

What are my voting rights under the Company's dual class equity structure?

On April 23, 2018, we amended and restated our certificate of incorporation to effectuate a dual class common stock structure consisting of Class A and Class B common stock. This amendment and restatement resulted in the initial authorization of Class A common stock and the automatic conversion of each share of our common stock, par value \$0.001 per share, into 25.2 shares of Class B common stock. In this Proxy Statement, we refer to these actions collectively as the "Reclassification," and we refer to the Class A and Class B common stock collectively as the "common stock."

The rights of holders of our Class A common stock and our Class B common stock are identical, except with respect to voting rights, conversion rights and certain transfer restrictions applicable to our Class B common stock. With respect to each proposal to come before the stockholders at the Annual Meeting, including the election of directors, each share of Class A common stock is entitled to one vote, and each share of Class B common stock is entitled to ten votes. As of the Record Date, there were (i) 11,950,000 shares of Class A common stock outstanding, representing approximately 23.2% of our total equity ownership and approximately 2.9% of the total voting power of our outstanding common stock, and (ii) 39,464,619 shares of Class B common stock outstanding, representing approximately 76.8% of our total equity ownership and approximately 97.1% of the total voting power of our outstanding common stock. Until the Class B common stock is converted to Class A common stock, holders of our Class B common stock have the ability to elect all of the members of our Board and to control the outcome of any other proposals to come before the stockholders at the Annual Meeting.

If I hold my shares through a brokerage firm, bank or other nominee, how do I vote at the Annual Meeting?

If your shares are held through a brokerage firm, bank or other nominee (collectively, "nominees"), then you are considered the beneficial owner of shares held in "street name," and these proxy materials are being forwarded to you by your nominee who is considered, with respect to those shares, the stockholder of record. As the beneficial owner, you are invited to attend the Annual Meeting. However, you may vote shares held in "street name" in person at the Annual Meeting only if you obtain a signed proxy from the record holder (your nominee) giving you the right to vote the shares. You also have the right to direct your nominee how to vote these shares. Your nominee should have enclosed a voting instruction form explaining the process for providing directions to your nominee about how to vote your shares.

May my nominee vote my shares without receiving an instruction from me as to how my shares should be voted?

A "broker non-vote" occurs when a nominee holding shares for a beneficial owner does not vote on a particular proposal because the nominee has not received instructions from the beneficial owner about how to vote on the proposal and does not have discretionary voting power for that proposal. If your shares are held in street name through a nominee and you do not instruct your nominee about how to vote your shares, then your nominee may vote your shares only on routine matters or, in its discretion, may leave your shares unvoted.

Proposal 1 (election of directors) is not considered a routine matter. As a result, without an instruction from the beneficial holder, a nominee may not vote the shares that it holds with respect to Proposal 1. However, because of the plurality voting standard for the election of directors, broker non-votes will have no effect on the outcome of the vote for Proposal 1. Proposal 2 (ratification of the appointment of our independent registered public accounting firm) is considered a routine matter. Therefore, nominees have the discretion to vote any uninstructed shares on Proposal 2, and broker non-votes are unlikely to result from this Proposal. Broker non-votes will be counted as present for purposes of establishing a quorum.

If I am a stockholder of record, how do I vote at the Annual Meeting?

If your shares are registered directly in your name with the Company's transfer agent, Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, Inc. ("Continental"), then you are considered the stockholder of record with respect to those shares, and these proxy materials are being sent directly to you. As the stockholder of record, you may vote your shares in person at the Annual Meeting, please bring to the Annual Meeting proof of your identity and your ownership of the Company's common stock on the Record Date, such as the enclosed proxy card or a statement of ownership from Continental. Even if you plan to attend the Annual Meeting, the Company recommends that you vote your shares in advance as described below so that your vote will be counted if you later decide not to or are otherwise unable to attend the Annual Meeting.

You also have the right to grant your voting proxy directly to the persons named as proxy holders, Ned N. Fleming, III, our Executive Chairman, Charles E. Owens, our President and Chief Executive Officer, and R. Alan Palmer, our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, by any of the following means:

- By Internet: Go to the website www.proxyvote.com and follow the instructions. You will need the control number included on the enclosed proxy card in order to vote by internet.
- By Telephone: Dial toll-free 1-800-690-6903 and follow the recorded instructions. You will need the control number included on the enclosed proxy card in order to vote by telephone.
- By Mail: Mark your selections on the enclosed proxy card, date and sign your name exactly as it appears on the proxy card and mail the proxy card in the enclosed pre-paid envelope. Mailed proxy cards must be received no later than March 7, 2019 in order to be counted at the Annual Meeting.

In accordance with the Company's amended and restated by-laws, a complete list of stockholders of record who are entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting will be available for inspection during the ten-day period prior to the Annual Meeting at the main office of the Company during regular business hours and at the Annual Meeting.

May I revoke my proxy or change my voting instructions?

You may revoke your proxy or change your voting instructions prior to the vote at the Annual Meeting. If your shares are held through a nominee, you must follow the instructions from your nominee on how to change or revoke your voting instructions or how to vote in person at the Annual Meeting. If you are a stockholder of record, you may enter new voting instructions by using the internet or telephone methods described above or by mailing a new proxy card bearing a later date. Any of these methods will automatically revoke your earlier voting instructions if they are received by 11:59 p.m., Central Time, on March 7, 2019. You may also enter a new vote by attending the Annual Meeting and voting in person. Your attendance at the Annual Meeting in person will not cause your previously granted proxy to be revoked unless you specifically so request.

What vote is required to approve each proposal?

For Proposal 1, the election of directors will be determined by a plurality of the votes cast by the stockholders present in person or represented by proxy at the Annual Meeting and entitled to vote. Under a plurality voting standard, the directors who are elected to serve on our Board will be the two nominees receiving the highest number of votes cast in the election. For each nominee, stockholders may either vote "FOR" that nominee or "WITHHOLD" their vote with respect to that nominee. Accordingly, shares electing to "WITHHOLD" from voting for a particular nominee will be counted as present for purposes of establishing a quorum, but will have no effect on the election of directors.

Proposal 2, the ratification of the appointment of RSM as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm, requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by the stockholders present in person or by proxy at the Annual Meeting and entitled to vote. Under this standard, Proposal 2 will be approved if the number of votes cast in favor of the Proposal exceeds the number of votes cast against it. Stockholders may either vote "FOR" or "AGAINST" the Proposal or may "ABSTAIN" from voting on the Proposal. Shares abstaining from voting on Proposal 2 will be counted as present for purposes of establishing a quorum but will have no effect on the outcome of the vote

The holders of our common stock do not have cumulative voting rights with respect to the matters to be acted on at the Annual Meeting. Therefore, stockholders holding a majority in voting power of the shares of our common stock entitled to vote generally in the election of directors will be able to elect all of our directors.

What is the Board's voting recommendation for each of the proposals?

The Board recommends that you vote your shares 'FOR" each of the nominees to the Board and "FOR" the ratification of the appointment of RSM as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2019. Unless instructed to the contrary, shares represented by proxies at the Annual Meeting will be voted in accordance with the Board recommendations described above. The Board urges you to review these proxy materials carefully before you vote.

Where can I find the voting results of the Annual Meeting?

We will announce preliminary voting results at the Annual Meeting and publish preliminary results, or final results if available, in a Current Report on Form 8-K within four business days after the Annual Meeting. If final results are unavailable at the time at which we file the Form 8-K, then we will file an amended report on Form 8-K to disclose the final voting results within four business days after the final voting results are known.

What happens if additional proposals are presented at the Annual Meeting?

Other than the proposals described in this Proxy Statement, we do not expect any matters to be presented for a vote at the Annual Meeting. If you grant a proxy, the persons named as proxy holders, Ned N. Fleming, III, our Executive Chairman, Charles E. Owens, our President and Chief Executive Officer, and R. Alan Palmer, our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, will have the discretion to vote your shares on any additional matters properly presented for a vote at the Annual Meeting. If, for any reason, one or more of the Company's nominees is not available as a candidate for director, then the persons named as proxy holders will vote your proxy for such other candidates as may be nominated by the Board.

What is the quorum requirement for the Annual Meeting?

The presence in person or by proxy of the holders of shares representing a majority of the voting power of all outstanding shares of the Company's common stock entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting will constitute a quorum at the Annual Meeting. Abstentions and broker non-votes are counted as present for the purpose of determining the presence of a quorum, but will have no effect on the outcome of the vote on the proposals to be presented at the Annual Meeting.

Who will count the vote?

We have engaged Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc. to tabulate the votes represented by proxies from brokerage firms, banks and other nominees and stockholders of record. A representative of the Company will act as the inspector of election.

Is my vote confidential?

Proxy instructions, ballots and voting tabulations that identify individual stockholders are handled in a manner that protects your voting privacy. Your vote will not be disclosed either within the Company or to third parties, except (i) as necessary to meet applicable legal requirements, (ii) to allow for the tabulation and certification of the votes and (iii) to facilitate a successful proxy solicitation by the Board.

May I propose actions for consideration at next year's annual meeting of stockholders or nominate individuals to serve as directors?

You may submit proposals and director nominations for consideration at future annual meetings of the Company's stockholders as follows:

Stockholder Proposals under Rule 14a-8: In order for a proposal by a stockholder of the Company to be eligible to be included in the Company's proxy statement for the 2020 annual meeting of stockholders pursuant to the proposal process mandated by Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act ("Rule 14a-8"), the proposal must be received by the Company on or before September 24, 2019 and must comply with the informational and other requirements set forth in Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act.

Other Stockholder Proposals and Nomination of Director Candidates: The Company's amended and restated by-laws also permit stockholders to nominate directors or submit proposals for a vote at a meeting of stockholders outside of the process provided by Rule 14a-8. In order for a stockholder to raise a proposal from the floor at an annual meeting or nominate an individual for election as a director, the proposal or nomination must be received by the Company not more than 120 days or less than 90 days before the first anniversary of the date of the preceding year's annual meeting. Thus, in order for a proposal or nomination to be timely for the 2020 annual meeting of stockholders, the proposal, together with the information required under the applicable by-law provision, must be received by the Company not earlier than November 9, 2019 or later than December 9, 2019.

Copy of Amended and Restated By-Law Provisions: Our amended and restated by-laws are available on the SEC's website at http://www.sec.gov. You may also contact our Secretary at our corporate headquarters for a copy of the relevant provisions of our amended and restated by-laws regarding the requirements for making stockholder proposals and nominating director candidates. Additionally, a copy of our amended and restated by-laws is available on our website at www.constructionpartners.net under the "Investors - Corporate Governance" tab.

What does it mean if I receive more than one set of proxy materials?

If you received more than one set of proxy materials, then your shares are registered in different names or are in more than one account. For each set of proxy materials that you receive, please submit your vote for the control number that has been assigned to you in such materials.

How do I obtain a separate set of proxy materials if I share an address with other stockholders?

To reduce expenses, in some cases, we may deliver one set of proxy materials to certain stockholders who share an address, unless otherwise requested by one or more of the stockholders. However, in such situations, a separate proxy card has been included with the proxy materials for each stockholder. If you have received only one set of proxy materials, you may request separate copies to be delivered promptly at no additional cost to you by calling us at (334) 673-9763 or by writing to us at Construction Partners, Inc., 290 Healthwest Drive, Suite 2, Dothan, Alabama 36303, Attention: Secretary.

If I share an address with other stockholders of the Company, how can we receive only one set of proxy materials for future meetings?

You may request that we send you and the other stockholders who share an address with you only one set of proxy materials by calling us at (334) 673-9763 or by writing to us at Construction Partners, Inc., 290 Healthwest Drive, Suite 2, Dothan, Alabama 36303, Attention: Secretary.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the beneficial ownership of our common stock as of the Record Date by: (i) each of our directors; (ii) each of our directors; (ii) each of our named executive officers; (iii) all of our directors and executive officers as a group; and (iv) each stockholder known by the Company to beneficially own more than 5% of our Class A or Class B common stock. Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC and includes voting or investment power with respect to the securities. Shares of common stock that may be acquired by an individual or group within 60 days of the Record Date pursuant to derivative securities, such as options, are deemed to be outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of such individual or group, but are not deemed to be outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of any other person shown in the table.

Percentage of ownership is based on a total of 11,950,000 shares of Class A common stock and 39,464,619 shares of Class B common stock outstanding as of the Record Date. Each share of Class A common stock is entitled to one vote per share, and each share of Class B common stock is entitled to ten votes per share. The Class A common stock and Class B common stock vote together on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders, unless otherwise required by applicable law, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation or our amended and restated by-laws. Neither class of our common stock has cumulative voting rights.

Except as indicated in the footnotes below, we believe, based on information furnished to us, that the persons and entities named in the table below have sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of our common stock that they beneficially own. The Company does not know of any arrangements, including any pledge by any person of the Company's securities, the operation of which may at a subsequent date result in a change in control of the Company. Unless otherwise indicated, the address for each director and executive officer is: c/o Construction Partners, Inc., 290 Healthwest Drive, Suite 2, Dothan, Alabama 36303.

	Common Stock Beneficially Owned					
	Class A Class B					
Name of Beneficial Holder	Shares	% of Class	Shares	% of Class	% of Total Voting Power†	
5% Stockholders	_					
SunTx CPI Expansion Fund, L.P. (1)	-	*	18,312,458	46.4 %	45.0 %	
SunTx Fulcrum Fund Prime, L.P. (1)	-	*	10,832,128	27.4 %	26.6 %	
SunTx Fulcrum Dutch Investors Prime, L.P. (1)	-	*	5,897,486	14.9 %	14.5 %	
Grace, Ltd. (2)	-	*	2,500,048	6.3 %	6.1 %	
ArrowMark Colorado Holdings LLC (3)	1,306,398	10.9 %	-	*	*	
Empyrean Capital Partners, LP (4)	767,428	6.8 %	-	*	*	
Directors and Named Executive Officers						
Ned N. Fleming, III (5) (6)	4,000	*	35,042,072	88.8 %	86.2 %	
Craig Jennings (5)	-	*	35,042,072	88.8 %	86.2 %	
Mark R. Matteson (5)	1,000	*	35,042,072	88.8 %	86.2 %	
Michael H. McKay	-	*	35,406	*	*	
Stefan L. Shaffer	-	*	-	*	*	
Charles E. Owens (7)	-	*	2,500,048	6.3 %	6.1 %	
R. Alan Palmer	1,500	*	290,209	*	*	
F. Julius Smith, III (8)	-	*	101,052	*	*	
All Directors and Executive Officers as a Group (14 persons)	37,900	*	38,413,039	97.2 %	94.3 %	

- Represents less than 1%.
- † Represents the voting power with respect to all shares of Class A common stock and Class B common stock outstanding as of the Record Date, voting as a single class.
- SunTx CPI Expansion Fund GP, L.P. ("SunTx Expansion Fund GP") is the general partner of SunTx Expansion Fund, L.P. ("SunTx Expansion Fund"), and SunTx Capital Partners L.P. ("SunTx Partners GP") is the general partner of each of SunTx Fulcrum Fund Prime, L.P. ("SunTx Fulcrum Fund") and SunTx Fulcrum Dutch Investors Prime, L.P. ("SunTx Fulcrum Dutch Fund" and, together with SunTx Expansion Fund and SunTx Fulcrum Fund, the "SunTx Funds"). Each of (i) Mr. Fleming, as the sole stockholder and director of SunTx Capital Management Corp. ("SunTx Capital Management"), (ii) SunTx Capital Management, as the general partner of each of SunTx Expansion Fund GP and SunTx Partners GP, (iii) SunTx Expansion Fund GP, as the general partner of SunTx Expansion Fund, and (iv) SunTx Partners GP, as the general partner of each of SunTx Fulcrum Fund and SunTx Fulcrum Dutch Fund, may be deemed to beneficially own shares held by the SunTx Funds. Additionally, Messrs. Jennings and Matteson, as executive officers of SunTx Capital Management, may be deemed to beneficially own shares held by the SunTx Funds. Each of Messrs. Fleming, Jennings and Matteson, as well as SunTx Capital Management, SunTx Expansion Fund GP and SunTx Partners GP, disclaims any beneficial ownership of such shares except to the extent of any proportionate pecuniary interest therein. The address of each of Messrs. Fleming, Jennings and Matteson, SunTx Management, SunTx Expansion Fund GP, SunTx Partners GP and the SunTx Funds is c/o SunTx Capital Management Corp., 5420 LBJ Freeway, Suite 1000, Dallas, Texas 75240.
- Charles E. Owens, our President and Chief Executive Officer, is the general partner of Grace Ltd. As the general partner of Grace Ltd., Mr. Owens may be deemed to beneficially own shares held by Grace Ltd. The business address of Grace Ltd. is 10 Chateau Place, Dothan, Alabama 36303.
- (3) Beneficial ownership information is as of July 31, 2018, as reported on a Schedule 13G filed by ArrowMark Colorado Holdings LLC on August 10, 2018. The address of the business office of ArrowMark Colorado Holdings LLC is 100 Fillmore Street, Suite 325, Denver, Colorado 80206.
- (4) Beneficial ownership information is as of May 4, 2018, as reported on a Schedule 13G filed by Empyrean Capital Partners, LP on May 11, 2018. Based on the Schedule 13G, 720,999 shares of the reported Class A common stock are owned by Empyrean Capital Overseas Master Fund, Ltd., a Cayman Islands exempted company, and 46,429 shares of the Class A common stock are owned by P EMP Ltd., a British Virgin Islands business company. Each of these entities shares voting and dispositive power with Empyrean Capital Partners, LP, a Delaware limited partnership, which serves as investment manager to each of these entities, and Amos Meron, a United States citizen, who serves as the managing member of Empyrean Capital, LLC, the general partner of Empyrean Capital Partners, LP. The address of the business office of each of these persons and entities is c/o Empyrean Capital Partners, LP, 10250 Constellation Boulevard, Suite 2950, Los Angeles, California 90067.
- (5) Includes shares of Class B common stock held by the SunTx Funds. See footnote 1 above.
- (6) Includes 4,000 shares of Class A common stock owned by Mr. Fleming's spouse.
- (7) Consists of shares of Class B common stock held by Grace Ltd. See footnote 2 above.
- (8) Includes a non-plan option to purchase 74,592 shares of Class B common stock at an exercise price of \$0.04 per share, which was fully vested on the date of grant, March 7, 2017, but is only exercisable upon a change of control of the Company, as defined in the option agreement. This option represents part of the consideration paid in the Company's acquisition of FSC II, LLC ("FSC").

MANAGEMENT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Our Board of Directors

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that the number of members of the Board will be determined from time to time by resolution of the Board. Currently, the Board consists of six members. The Board is divided into three classes of two directors each, with the directors in each class serving staggered three-year terms. As a result, as currently constituted, one-third of the Board is elected each year.

Our current directors are divided into the following classes:

- Class I, consisting of Ned N. Fleming, III and Charles E. Owens, whose terms will expire at the Annual Meeting:
- Class II, consisting of Craig Jennings and Mark R. Matteson, whose terms will expire at the 2020 annual meeting of stockholders;
 and
- Class III, consisting of Michael H. McKay and Stefan L. Shaffer, whose terms will expire at the 2021 annual meeting of stockholders.

Information about the Nominees and Other Directors

Set forth below are the biographies of each of the nominees and our other directors, including their names, ages, offices in the Company, if any, principal occupations or employment for at least the past five years, the length of their tenure as directors, and the names of other public companies in which such persons hold or have held directorships during the past five years. Additionally, information about the specific experience, qualifications, attributes or skills that led to the Board's conclusion that each person listed below should serve as a director is set forth below. The stock ownership of each director is set forth in the table above entitled "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management."

Name	Age	Position
Ned N. Fleming, III (2)(3)	58	Executive Chairman of the Board and Director
Charles E. Owens (3)	68	President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
Craig Jennings	60	Director
Mark R. Matteson (1) (2) (3)	55	Director
Michael H. McKay (1)	57	Director
Stefan L. Shaffer (1) (2)	62	Director

- (1) Member of the Audit Committee
- (2) Member of the Compensation Committee
- (3) Member of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

Class I Nominees for Election - Terms Expire at the Annual Meeting

Ned N. Fleming, III is one of the founders of our Company and has served as Executive Chairman of the Board since our inception. He has served as Managing Partner of SunTx since 2001. He also serves as chairman of the boards of directors of NationsBuilders Insurance Services, Inc. and Big Outdoor LLC, and as a member of the board of directors of Veritex Holdings, Inc. (Nasdaq: VBTX). Mr. Fleming previously served as a member of the board of directors of DF&R Restaurants, Inc., a formerly publicly traded restaurant operator, and Spinnaker Industries, Inc., a publicly traded material manufacturing company. Prior to co-founding SunTx in 2001, Mr. Fleming served as President and Chief Operating Officer of Spinnaker Industries, Inc. until its sale in 1999. Prior to that, Mr. Fleming worked at a Dallas-based private investment firm, where he led acquisitions in the food and beverage and defense industries. Mr. Fleming received a Master of Business Administration with distinction from Harvard Business School and a Bachelor of Arts in Political Science from Stanford University. As a result of his role with our Company since our inception, Mr. Fleming has significant knowledge of us and our industry, which we believe makes him well-qualified to serve as a director of our Company.

Charles E. Owens is one of the founders of our Company and has served as our President and Chief Executive Officer since its inception. He has been a member of the Board since 2001 and has overseen the successful acquisition and integration of 16 companies in this role. From 1990 until its sale in 1999, Mr. Owens was President and Chief Executive Officer of Superfos Construction U.S., Inc. ("Superfos"), the North American operation of Superfos a/s, a publicly held Danish company. During his tenure at Superfos, he oversaw the successful acquisition and integration of approximately 35 companies, leading Superfos to become one of the largest highway construction companies in the United States. Prior to 1990, Mr. Owens was President of Couch Construction, Inc., a subsidiary of Superfos headquartered in Dothan, Alabama. Mr. Owens received a Bachelor of Business Administration from Troy University. As a result of his role with our Company since our inception, Mr. Owens has significant knowledge of us and our industry, which we believe makes him well-qualified to serve as a director of our Company.

Class II Continuing Directors - Terms Expire in 2020

Craig Jennings has served as a member of the Board since 2017. Since 2001, he has been a partner and Chief Financial Officer of SunTx. He also serves as chairman of the board of directors of Interface Security Systems Holdings, Inc. Prior to co-founding SunTx, Mr. Jennings was Vice President of Finance and Treasurer of Spinnaker Industries, Inc., a publicly traded materials manufacturing company, until its sale in 1999. Prior to that, Mr. Jennings held senior finance positions at a publicly traded oil field services company and a publicly traded food and beverage company. Prior to that, Mr. Jennings was a Senior Audit Manager with Ernst & Young LLP. Mr. Jennings received his Bachelor of Business Administration from the University of Toledo and is a Certified Public Accountant. We believe that Mr. Jennings' investment, financial and directorship experience makes him well-qualified to serve as a director of our Company.

Mark R. Matteson has served as a member of the Board since our inception and was appointed as chairman of our Audit Committee in 2008. Since 2001, he has been a partner of SunTx. Prior to co-founding SunTx in 2001, Mr. Matteson was Vice President of Corporate Development of Spinnaker Industries, Inc., a publicly traded materials manufacturing company, until its sale in 1999. He currently serves as chairman of the board of directors of Freedom Truck Finance, LLC and as a member of the boards of directors of Anchor Partners, LLC and NationsBuilders Insurance Services, Inc. Mr. Matteson received a Master of Business Administration from Georgetown University and a Bachelor of Arts in Foreign Service and International Politics from The Pennsylvania State University. As a result of his role with our Company since our inception, Mr. Matteson has significant knowledge of us and our industry, which we believe makes him well-qualified to serve as a director of our Company.

Class III Continuing Directors - Terms Expire in 2021

Michael H. McKay has served as a member of the Board since 2002 and was appointed to our Audit Committee in 2008. Mr. McKay has been an Advisory Partner at Bain & Company since 2009. He also serves as a member of the board of directors of Big Outdoor Holdings, LLC and Hubbardton Forge, LLC. Since joining Bain & Company in 1987, he helped found its Private Equity Group and has evaluated and developed strategies for hundreds of businesses. From 2004 to 2006, Mr. McKay served as Chief Investment Officer of a principal investment firm based in Washington D.C., making public and private investments, and was Managing Partner of a Boston-based hedge fund from 2006 to 2009. Mr. McKay is also a Senior Lecturer at the Brandeis International Business School, where he has served on the faculty since 2010. Mr. McKay received a Master of Business Administration from The University of Chicago Graduate School of Business, where he received the Mayer Prize as top graduating student, and a Bachelor of Arts with high distinction in Economics from Harvard University. We believe that Mr. McKay's experience analyzing, financing and investing in public and private companies makes him well-qualified to serve as a director of our Company.

Stefan L. Shaffer has served as a member of the Board since 2018. Mr. Shaffer is the Managing Partner of SPP Capital Partners, a middle market investment banking and asset management firm that he co-founded in 1989. Prior to founding SPP Capital Partners, Mr. Shaffer was a Vice President in the Private Placement Group at Bankers Trust Company from 1986 to 1989, and worked as an attorney with the law firm of White & Case LLP from 1982 to 1986. Mr. Shaffer received a Juris Doctor from Cornell University Law School and a Bachelor of Arts from Colgate University. We believe that Mr. Shaffer's experience analyzing, financing and advising public and private companies makes him well-qualified to serve as a director of our Company.

Information about Executive Officers Who Are Not Also Directors

The following table sets forth certain information about our executive officers who are not also directors.

Name	Age	Position
R. Alan Palmer	66	Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Todd K. Andrews	56	Chief Accounting Officer
M. Brett Armstrong	57	Senior Vice President
J. Ryan Brooks	30	Senior Vice President, Legal
Robert P. Flowers	59	Senior Vice President
John L. Harper	54	Senior Vice President
F. Julius Smith, III	49	Senior Vice President
John A. Walker	62	Senior Vice President

- *R. Alan Palmer* is one of the founders of our Company and has served as our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since 2006. Between 2001 and 2006, Mr. Palmer provided consulting services to the Company. Prior to 2000, Mr. Palmer was Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Couch Construction, Inc. and Superfos. Mr. Palmer has been principally involved in the acquisition and integration of approximately 50 companies alongside Mr. Owens over the course of his career. Mr. Palmer is a Certified Public Accountant and received a Bachelor of Science in Accounting from Auburn University.
- Todd K. Andrews was appointed as our Chief Accounting Officer in December 2018. Prior to his appointment, Mr. Andrews served as the Company's Controller, a role that he held since 2008. Before joining the Company, Mr. Andrews served for more than nine years as Chief Financial Officer of Graceba Total Communications, Inc., a provider of cable television and broadband internet services, and in accounting roles at two banking institutions. Mr. Andrews is a Certified Public Accountant and holds Bachelor of Science degrees in Accounting and Computer Science from Troy University.
- *M. Brett Armstrong* has served as our Senior Vice President since 2017 and has served as Chief Operating Officer of Wiregrass Construction Company, Inc. ("WCC"), a subsidiary of our Company, since 2008. Mr. Armstrong served as Vice President and Area Manager of WCC from 2000 to 2008. Mr. Armstrong has more than 30 years of construction management experience. Prior to joining WCC, he was Area Manager over the Columbus, Georgia division of Ashland Paving and Construction, Inc. Prior to that, he was Area Manager over the Columbus, Georgia division of Superfos. Mr. Armstrong holds a Bachelor of Science in Civil Engineering from Auburn University.
- J. Ryan Brooks has served as our Senior Vice President, Legal, since August 2018. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Brooks was in private law practice at Maynard, Cooper & Gale, P.C. in Birmingham, Alabama, where he represented both public and private companies in a variety of corporate matters, including mergers and acquisitions, securities offerings and regulatory compliance. Mr. Brooks holds a Bachelor of Science in Accounting from Auburn University and a Juris Doctor from Vanderbilt University Law School.
- Robert P. Flowers has served as our Senior Vice President since 2017 and has served as President of C.W. Roberts Contracting, Inc., a subsidiary of our Company, since joining our Company in 2013. Mr. Flowers has more than 30 years of construction management experience. Prior to joining our Company, he was Executive Vice President of Estimating and Construction for Barlovento, LLC, a general contractor performing civil and commercial construction throughout the United States. Prior to that, Mr. Flowers was the Georgia Platform President of Superfos.
- John L. Harper has served as our Senior Vice President since 2017 and has served as President of WCC, a subsidiary of our Company, since 1996. Mr. Harper has more than 30 years of construction management experience. Prior to becoming President of WCC, he served as Vice President of Estimating/Project Management of WCC. An active member of several state and national highway construction organizations, Mr. Harper currently serves as the Chairman of the National Asphalt Pavement Association. Mr. Harper received a Bachelor of Science in Finance from Auburn University.
- F. Julius Smith, III has served as our Senior Vice President since 2017 and has served as President of Fred Smith Construction, Inc., a subsidiary of our Company acquired in 2011, since 2009. With more than 20 years of construction management experience, Mr. Smith previously served as Chief Operating Officer of Fred Smith Construction, Inc. from 2005 to 2009. Prior to that, he held various other positions within Fred Smith Construction, Inc. and also served in the supply corps of the U.S. Navy. Mr. Smith received a Master of Business Administration and a Bachelor of Arts in History from Wake Forest University.

John A. Walker has served as our Senior Vice President since 2017 and previously served as Vice President of Business Development since joining our Company in 2009. Mr. Walker has more than 30 years of experience in the construction industry. Before joining our Company, he was a Regional Vice President at Oldcastle Materials, Inc. Prior to that, he was the Alabama Platform President of Superfos. Mr. Walker is a Licensed Professional Engineer and holds a Bachelor of Science in Civil Engineering from Auburn University.

Certain Director and Executive Officer Relationships

None of our current directors or director nominees were selected pursuant to any arrangement or understanding, other than with our directors and executive officers acting within their capacities as such. There are no family relationships between or among any of our directors and executive officers. Mr. Fleming, who serves as a member of the board of directors of Veritex Holdings, Inc., is the only director or executive officer of the Company who serves as a director of a company that (i) has a class of securities registered under, or that is subject to the periodic reporting requirements of, the Exchange Act, or (ii) is an investment company registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940. None of our directors or executive officers has been involved in any legal proceedings during the past 10 years that are material to an evaluation of the ability or integrity of such person. In addition, none of our directors, executive officers or 5% stockholders or any associate of any of the foregoing has been involved in any legal proceedings in which such person has or had a material interest adverse to the Company or any of our subsidiaries. The principal occupation and employment during the past five years of each of our directors was carried on, in each case except as specifically identified above, with a corporation or organization that is not a parent, subsidiary or other affiliate of the Company.

Director Independence and Controlled Company Exemption

Because SunTx beneficially owns a majority of the voting power of our outstanding common stock, we are a "controlled company" under the listing rules of The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC ("Nasdaq"). As a controlled company, we are exempt from certain Nasdaq governance requirements that would otherwise apply to the composition and function of our Board. For example, we are not required to comply with certain rules that would otherwise require, among other things, (i) our Board to have a majority of independent directors, (ii) the compensation of our executive officers to be determined by a majority of the independent directors or a committee of independent directors, and director nominees to be selected or recommended either by a majority of the independent directors or a committee of independent directors. Notwithstanding our status as a controlled company, we remain subject to the requirements that our independent directors hold regular executive sessions and that our Audit Committee consist entirely of independent directors by May 4, 2019, the one-year anniversary of the listing of our Class A common stock on the Nasdaq Global Select Market.

If at any time we cease to be a controlled company, we will take all action necessary to comply with the Nasdaq listing rules, including appointing a majority of independent directors to our Board and ensuring that our Compensation Committee and our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee are each composed entirely of independent directors, subject to any permitted "phase-in" periods. We will no longer qualify as a controlled company once SunTx ceases to own a majority of the voting power of our outstanding common stock.

To qualify as "independent" under the Nasdaq listing rules, a director must meet certain objective criteria set forth in the Nasdaq listing rules, and our Board must affirmatively determine that the director has no material relationship with us (either directly or as a partner, stockholder or officer of an organization that has a relationship with us) that would interfere with his or her exercise of independent judgment in carrying out his or her responsibilities as a director. Among other things, the Nasdaq independence criteria include that the director not be our employee and not have engaged in various types of business dealings with the Company.

Our Board has reviewed all direct or indirect business relationships between each director (including his or her immediate family members) and the Company, as well as each director's relationships with charitable organizations, to assess director independence as defined in the Nasdaq listing rules. Based on this review, our Board has determined that Stefan L. Shaffer and Michael H. McKay are "independent" directors under the Nasdaq listing rules. Additionally, our Board has determined that Messrs. Shaffer and McKay satisfy the heightened independence requirements of Rule 10A-3 under the Exchange Act for purposes of Audit Committee membership.

Board Leadership Structure

The Board oversees the business and affairs of the Company and monitors the performance of its management. Although the Board is not involved in the Company's day-to-day operations, the directors keep themselves informed about the Company through meetings of the Board, reports from management and discussions with the Company's executive officers. Directors also communicate with the Company's outside advisors, as necessary.

Members of the Board are elected by our stockholders. The basic responsibility of the Board is to lead the Company by exercising its business judgment to act in what each director reasonably believes to be the best interests of the Company and its stockholders. Leadership is important to facilitate the Board acting effectively as a working group so that the Company and its performance may benefit.

The role of Executive Chairman of the Board includes providing continuous feedback on the direction, performance and strategy of the Company, presiding as chairman of Board meetings, setting the Board's agenda with management and leading the Board in anticipating and responding to opportunities and challenges faced by the Company. Ned N. Fleming, III currently serves as the Executive Chairman of our Board. Our Board does not have a formal policy regarding the combination of the roles of Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer because the Board believes that it is in the best interests of the Company to have the flexibility to determine, from time to time, whether the positions should be held by the same person or by separate persons. The Board believes that the current separation of the roles of Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer allows the Company to benefit from the knowledge and leadership of two experienced business veterans and is advantageous to independence, oversight and objectivity. The Board may reconsider this leadership structure from time to time based on the leadership needs of our Board and the Company at any particular time.

Board Observer Rights

SunTx CPI Expansion Fund, L.P. (the "Expansion Fund"), a limited partnership controlled by SunTx, is one of our largest stockholders. The Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company ("Northwestern Mutual") and the USS-Constitution Partnership Fund, L.P. are significant limited partner investors in the Expansion Fund. The Company is a party to letter agreements with these two entities pursuant to which each of them has the right to designate one representative to attend each meeting of our Board and any committee thereof. In certain limited circumstances, we have agreed to reimburse Northwestern Mutual for reasonable out-of-pocket costs incurred by its representative in connection with traveling to and from and attending these meetings.

Meetings of the Board

Our Board conducts its business through meetings of the full Board and its committees. Under our Corporate Governance Guidelines, directors are expected to prepare for and attend all meetings of the Board and committees on which they serve. During our fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, the Board met three times, and no director attended fewer than 75% of the aggregate of (i) the total number of meetings of the Board and (ii) the total number of meetings of committees of the Board for the period during which the director served on the Board or such committee. We encourage our directors to attend annual meetings of the Company's stockholders. The Company did not hold an annual meeting of stockholders during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018.

Committees of the Board

On November 17, 2017, the Board established three standing committees to assist it in carrying out its responsibilities: the Audit Committee, the Compensation Committee and the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. Each of the standing committees operates under its own written charter adopted by our Board, all of which are available on the Company's investor relations website at http://ir.constructionpartners.net under the heading "Corporate Governance - Committee Charters." In addition, special committees may be established under the direction of our Board when necessary to address specific issues. The standing committees annually review and assess the adequacy of their respective charters and recommend any revisions to the Board.

The membership and functions of each of the standing committees, as well as the number of meetings that each of them held during the 2018 fiscal year, are described below.

Audit Committee

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to oversee our accounting and financial reporting processes, the audits of our financial statements, the qualifications and performance of our independent registered public accounting firm and the execution of our internal audit function. The Audit Committee is responsible for, among other things:

- reviewing and discussing with management and our independent registered public accounting firm our annual audited and interim unaudited financial statements
 and related disclosures to be included in our quarterly earnings releases and periodic reports filed with the SEC;
- recommending to the Board whether our audited financial statements will be included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K;

- reviewing and discussing the scope and results of the independent registered public accounting firm's annual audit and quarterly reviews of our financial statements, and any other matters required to be communicated to the Audit Committee by the independent registered public accounting firm;
- reviewing and discussing with management, our independent registered public accounting firm and any internal personnel or third parties serving an internal audit function the adequacy and effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures, our internal controls and procedures for financial reporting and our risk assessment and risk management policies (including those related to significant business risk exposures, such as data privacy and network security);
- appointing, compensating, retaining and overseeing the work of our independent registered public accounting firm, including their independence;
- reviewing and preapproving all audit, review or attest services and permitted non-audit services that may be performed by our independent registered public
 accounting firm;
- establishing and maintaining guidelines relating to our hiring of employees and former employees of our independent registered public accounting firm:
- reviewing and discussing the scope and staffing of our internal audit function, including any difficulties encountered by the internal audit function and restrictions
 on the scope of its work or access to required information, and reviewing significant internal audit reports and management's responses;
- confirming the regular rotation of the audit partners with our independent auditor and considering whether there should be regular rotation of our auditors:
- preparing an annual Audit Committee report to be included in our proxy statement:
- reviewing legal and regulatory matters that may have a material impact on our financial statements and reviewing our compliance policies and procedures, including the implementation and effectiveness of our compliance programs;
- participating in the selection of the Company's lead audit partner;
- reviewing the Company's significant financing transactions and related documentation that may have a material impact on the Company's ability to borrow to
 ensure that the Company is able to finance its ongoing and future operations, and evaluating whether to recommend that the Board approve or ratify any such
 financing transaction:
- considering all of the relevant facts and circumstances available for related party transactions submitted to the Audit Committee in accordance with our written policy governing related party transactions;
- establishing and maintaining procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by the Company regarding accounting, internal accounting controls and auditing matters for the confidential, anonymous submission by our employees of concerns regarding questionable accounting and auditing matters;
- reviewing and discussing all critical accounting policies and practices to be used, all alternative treatments of financial information within GAAP that have been
 discussed with management, ramifications of the use of such alternative disclosures and treatments, the treatment preferred by the independent auditor, and other
 material written communications between the independent auditor and management; and
- reviewing and recommending to the Board director and officer indemnification and insurance policies and procedures.

The Audit Committee currently consists of Messrs. Matteson (Chairperson), McKay and Shaffer. The Board has determined that (i) Messrs. McKay and Shaffer are independent under the Nasdaq listing rules, (ii) Messrs. McKay and Shaffer each satisfy the heightened independence requirements of Rule 10A-3 under the Exchange Act, (iii) each of Messrs. Matteson, McKay and Shaffer is financially literate and (iv) Mr. McKay qualifies as an "audit committee financial expert" under the criteria set forth in the rules and regulations of the SEC. The Audit Committee met three times during the 2018 fiscal year.

Both the SEC and Nasdaq have implemented rules requiring us to have an audit committee composed of at least three directors, each of whom meets the independence and experience standards established by Nasdaq and the Exchange Act, subject to transitional relief during the one-year period following the completion of our initial public offering. Accordingly, the Audit Committee will be composed solely of independent directors by May 4, 2019, the one-year anniversary of the date on which the Company's Class A common stock was first listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market.

Compensation Committee

The primary purposes of the Compensation Committee are to establish salaries, incentives and other forms of compensation for our officers and other employees and to administer the Company's incentive compensation and benefit plans. More specifically, the Compensation Committee is responsible for, among other things:

- reviewing and approving annually the corporate goals and objectives relevant to the compensation of our executive officers, evaluating the performance of our executive officers in light of those goals and setting the compensation levels of our executive officers based on such evaluation;
- reviewing the competitiveness of our compensation programs for executive officers to (i) attract and retain executive officers, (ii) motivate our executive officers to achieve our business objectives, and (iii) align the interests of our executive officers and key employees with the long-term interests of our stockholders;
- reviewing trends in management compensation, overseeing the development of new compensation plans and, when necessary, revising existing plans;
- periodically reviewing the compensation paid to non-employee directors through annual retainers and any other cash or equity components of compensation and perquisites, and making recommendations to the Board for any adjustments;
- reviewing and approving the employment agreements, salaries, bonuses, equity or equity-based awards and severance, termination, indemnification and change in control agreements for all of our executive officers;
- reviewing and approving compensation packages for new executive officers and termination packages for executive officers as may be suggested by management or the Board:
- reviewing and approving our policies and procedures with respect to expense accounts and perquisites for our executive officers:
- reviewing and discussing with the Board and our executive officers plans for executive officer development and corporate succession plans for the Company's executive officers;
- reviewing and making recommendations concerning long-term incentive compensation plans, including the use of stock options and other equity-based plans;
- overseeing our employee benefit plans;
- reviewing periodic reports from management on matters relating to personnel appointments and practices;
- reviewing and assessing the Company's policies and practices for compensating its employees, including its executive officers, as they relate to risk management
 practices, risk-taking incentives and identified major risk exposures to the Company; and
- making recommendations concerning policies to mitigate risks arising from compensation policies and practices, including policies providing for the recovery of
 incentive or equity-based compensation and limiting hedging activities related to the Company's common stock.

Pursuant to its charter, the Compensation Committee is authorized to retain and terminate advisors to assist the Compensation Committee in discharging its duties and responsibilities to the extent that the Compensation Committee deems necessary. This includes the authority to approve fees and the other terms and conditions of the advisors' retention. In addition, any of the responsibilities described above may be delegated to one or more subcommittees, as the Compensation Committee may deem necessary or appropriate.

Our Compensation Committee consists of Messrs. Fleming (Chairperson), Matteson, and Shaffer. Our Board has determined that Mr. Shaffer is the only member of the Compensation Committee who is independent under the Nasdaq listing rules. The Compensation Committee met one time during the 2018 fiscal year.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee identifies, evaluates and recommends qualified nominees to serve on our Board, develops and oversees our internal corporate governance processes and maintains a management succession plan. Among other things, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for:

- reviewing and making recommendations regarding the size, composition and organization of the Board:
- developing and recommending to the Board specific criteria for the selection of directors:
- with respect to director nominees, (i) identifying individuals qualified to become members of the Board (consistent with criteria approved by the Board), (ii) reviewing the qualifications of any such person submitted to be considered as a director, and (iii) selecting the director nominees for the annual meeting of stockholders or to fill vacancies on the Board;
- developing and periodically reassessing policies and procedures with respect to the consideration of any director candidate recommended by stockholders or otherwise;
- reviewing and making recommendations to the Board with respect to the size, composition and organization of Board committees (other than the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee);
- recommending procedures for the effective functioning of the Board:
- assisting the Board in determining whether individual directors have material relationships with the Company that may interfere with their independence;
- overseeing the Board's annual self-evaluation process and reporting annually to the Board with an assessment of the Board's performance;
- developing and maintaining an orientation program for new directors and continuing education programs for directors;
 and
- reviewing and discussing, as appropriate, with management the Company's public disclosures and its disclosures to stock exchanges relating to independence, governance and director nomination matters, including in the Company's proxy statement.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee consists of Messrs. Fleming (Chairperson), Owens and Matteson. Our Board has determined that none of the members of our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee are independent under the Nasdaq listing rules. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee did not meet during the 2018 fiscal year.

Role of the Board in Risk Oversight

Our Board, as a whole and through its committees, has responsibility for the oversight of risk management at the Company. In its risk oversight role, our Board has the responsibility to satisfy itself that the risk management processes designed and implemented by management are adequate and functioning as designed. The Board receives reports from management on financial, operational, legal compliance and reputation risks and the degree of exposure to those risks. The Board helps ensure that management is properly focused on risk by, among other things, reviewing and discussing the performance of senior management and business units of the Company.

Our Board oversees an enterprise-wide approach to risk management, which is designed to (i) support the achievement of organizational objectives, including strategic objectives, (ii) improve long-term organizational performance and (iii) enhance stockholder value. Several Board committees are responsible for risk oversight in specific areas. For example, the Audit Committee oversees financial, accounting and internal control risk management policies and approves the independent auditor and its annual audit plan. The Audit Committee also reports periodically to the Board on the effectiveness of risk management processes in place and the overall risk assessment of the Company's activities. The Compensation Committee assesses and monitors risks in the Company's compensation program. For more information on the responsibilities of the committees of our Board, see the discussion about the respective committees under the heading "Committees of the Board."

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

We are committed to having sound corporate governance principles. Such principles are essential to running our business efficiently and maintaining our integrity in the marketplace. We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all of our employees, including our executive officers, and the members of our Board. The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is available on our Investor Relations website at http://ir.constructionpartners.net/ under the heading "Corporate Governance - Governance Documents." Any future changes or amendments to the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, and any waiver thereof that applies to our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer or Chief Accounting Officer, will be posted on our website and otherwise reported in accordance with SEC and Nasdaq rules.

Corporate Governance Guidelines

The Board has adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines to assist the Board and its committees in the exercise of their responsibilities. The Corporate Governance Guidelines set forth guiding principles and provide a flexible framework for the governance of the Company. The Corporate Governance Guidelines address, among other things, board composition, director qualifications and responsibilities, and stockholder communications with the Board. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for regularly reviewing and providing recommendations to the Board on the Corporate Governance Guidelines, and the full Board will approve changes as it deems appropriate. A copy of the Corporate Governance Guidelines is available on our Investor Relations website at http://ir.constructionpartners.net/ under the heading "Corporate Governance - Governance Documents."

Nomination and Consideration of Director Candidates

Procedures of the Board and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee - General

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee of the Board is responsible for identifying and evaluating qualified candidates for election to the Board. Following its evaluation, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee recommends to the full Board a slate of director candidates for inclusion in the Company's proxy statement. These recommendations are based on an evaluation that is consistent with the criteria for selecting directors described below and are also consistent with the Company's organizational documents and applicable law and listing rules. The backgrounds and qualifications of the directors, considered as group, are intended to provide a significant mix of experience, knowledge and abilities to allow the Board to fulfill its responsibilities.

In evaluating the suitability of director candidates, the Board and the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee consider many factors, including the nominee's integrity and judgment; independence; knowledge and skills; experience and accomplishments; contribution to board diversity; contribution to board interaction; availability and willingness to commit to participate in Board and committee activities; compatibility with the Company's management team and culture; understanding of the Company's business; and other factors that the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee concludes are pertinent in light of the then-current needs of the Board. The Board believes that its membership should reflect a diversity of experience, gender, race, ethnicity and age. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee selects qualified nominees and reviews its recommendations with the Board, which decides whether to nominate a particular candidate for election or invite such candidate to join the Board. When evaluating the suitability of an incumbent director for nomination or re-election, the Board and the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee also consider the director's past performance, including attendance at meetings and participation in and contributions to the activities of the Board. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee may consider individuals recommended by Board members, management, stockholders and, if it deems appropriate, a professional search firm.

The Board may also consider candidates to fill a vacancy in the Board outside of the stockholder meeting process. In such a case, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee uses the same criteria used to evaluate a director nominee to be elected by stockholders. In the event of a vacancy to be filled by the Board, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will recommend to the Board one or more candidates for election by the Board, and proxies will not be solicited.

Recommendations of Director Candidates by Stockholders

In December 2018, the Board adopted a formal policy governing the manner in which the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committeewill consider director candidates recommended by the Company's stockholders. Candidates recommended by stockholders will be evaluated in the same manner as candidates recommended by directors or management according to the criteria set forth above.

Stockholders who wish to recommend candidates for the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee's consideration must submit a written recommendation to the Secretary of the Company at 290 Healthwest Drive, Suite 2, Dothan, Alabama 36303. Recommendations must be sent by certified or registered mail and received by October 1 for consideration at the following year's annual meeting of stockholders. Recommendations must include the following:

- the recommending stockholder's name, number of shares owned, length of period held, proof of ownership and written certification that such recommending stockholder intends to continue to remain a stockholder through the date of the annual meeting with respect to which the candidate is to be nominated;
- the candidate's name, address, phone number, e-mail address and age:
- a resume describing, at a minimum, the candidate's educational background, occupation, employment history and material outside commitments (e.g., memberships on other boards and committees, charitable foundations, etc.);
- a supporting statement that describes the stockholder's and candidate's reasons for nomination to the Board and demonstrates the candidate's ability to satisfy the director qualifications described above;
- the candidate's consent to a background investigation;
- a notarized affidavit executed by the candidate to the effect that, if nominated and elected, he or she will serve, is eligible for election as a member of the Board, and consents to being named in the proxy statement as a nominee, if he or she will in fact be so named;
- a description of all direct and indirect compensation and other material monetary agreements, arrangements and understandings during the past three years between the nominating stockholder and the candidate;
- a description of any voting commitments and/or any other arrangements or obligations by which the candidate is or will be bound as a
 director:
- a completed questionnaire regarding the candidate, which may be obtained from the Secretary of the Company, relating to the stock exchange listing requirements for director independence that are applicable to the Company; and
- any other information relating to the recommended stockholder and the candidate that would be required to be disclosed in a proxy statement on Schedule 14A for solicitation of proxies for election of directors under the Exchange Act and pursuant to Nasdaq rules and any other applicable laws, rules or regulations.

The Secretary will promptly forward these materials to the Chairperson of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee may contact recommended candidates to request additional information necessary for its evaluation or for disclosure under applicable SEC rules, including, without limitation, information relating to such candidate that is required to be disclosed in solicitations of proxies for election of directors pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will consider a recommendation only if appropriate biographical information and background material is provided on a timely basis.

In considering a candidate, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will consider the size and duration of a recommending stockholder's ownership interest in the Company. In addition, any candidate proposed by a stockholder must be independent of the nominating stockholder in all respects (i.e., free of any material personal, professional, financial or business relationships from the nominating stockholder) as determined by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee or by applicable law and must also meet the definition of an "independent director" under applicable Nasdaq rules. The candidate must be expected to contribute in a positive manner to the function of the Board in light of the factors for consideration described above.

Except as may be required by applicable law, rule or regulation, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will have no obligation to acknowledge receipt of the recommendation and accompanying materials described above or otherwise communicate with the stockholder submitting the same.

Stockholder Nominations of Director Candidates at Meetings of Stockholders

Separate procedures apply if a stockholder wishes to nominate a director candidate for election at a meeting of stockholders. These procedures, as well as the Company's director qualifications, are specified in the Company's amended and restated by-laws and are summarized below. Nothing in the above-described procedures for stockholders to recommend candidates to the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee supersedes any requirements set forth in the amended and restated by-laws for the nomination of a director candidate by a stockholder of the Company.

Section 3.2 of the Company's amended and restated by-laws provides procedures pursuant to which stockholders may nominate director candidates at meetings of stockholders. To provide timely notice of a director nomination at an annual meeting of stockholders, the stockholder's notice must be received by the Secretary of the Company at the principal executive offices of the Company, located at 290 Healthwest Drive, Suite 2, Dothan, Alabama 36303: (i) with respect to an annual meeting, not earlier than the 120th day before, and not later than the 90th day before, the first anniversary of the date of the preceding year's annual meeting, (ii) if the date of the applicable annual meeting is more than 30 days before or 60 days after the first anniversary of the prior year's annual meeting, not earlier than the 120th day before the date of such annual meeting, and not later than the later of (x) the 90th day before the meeting or (y) the 10th day following the day on which public announcement of the date of the annual meeting is first made by the Company, and (iii) with respect to any special meeting of y) the 10th day following the day on which public announcement of the date of the special meeting is first made by the Company. However, if the number of directors to be elected at an annual meeting is greater than the number of directors whose terms expire on the date of the annual meeting and there is no public announcement by the Company naming all of the nominees for the additional directors to be elected or specifying the size of the increased Board before the 90th day prior to the anniversary date of the immediately preceding annual meeting of stockholders, a stockholder's notice will also be considered timely if received not later than the 10th day following the date on which the public announcement was first made by the Company, but only with respect to nominees for the additional directorships created by such increase that are to be filled by election at such annual meeting.

A nominating stockholder's notice must also satisfy the information requirements specified in Section 3.2(d) of our amended and restated by-laws with respect to the nominee for director and the nominating stockholder. Additionally, in order to be eligible for nomination, a potential nominee must deliver to the Secretary of the Company (i) a completed questionnaire providing information concerning the background and qualifications of that person and (ii) a written representation and agreement in a form to be provided by the Secretary pertaining to, among other things, any voting commitments made by the potential nominee and compensation that the nominee expects to receive other than from the Company as a result of his or her service as a director. The Company may require any proposed nominee or stockholder who nominates the proposed nominee to furnish such other information as the Company may reasonably require to determine the eligibility of the proposed nominee to serve as a director of the Company or that could be material to a reasonable stockholder's understanding of the independence, or lack thereof, of the proposed nominee. The chairman of the meeting of stockholders will determine whether or not a nomination was made in accordance with the procedures set forth in our amended and restated by-laws. If the chairman determines that a nomination is defective, he will declare to the meeting that such nomination is defective, and the nomination will be disregarded.

Our amended and restated by-laws are available on the SEC's website at http://www.sec.gov. You may also obtain a copy of the relevant provisions of our amended and restated by-laws regarding the requirements for nominating director candidates at no charge by contacting our Secretary at 290 Healthwest Drive, Suite 2, Dothan, Alabama 36303. Additionally, a copy of our amended and restated by-laws is available on our website at www.constructionpartners.net under the "Investors - Corporate Governance" tab

Executive Sessions

The Company's Corporate Governance Guidelines require non-management directors to meet regularly in executive sessions without management present. These sessions may be chaired by the Chairman of the Board or the chairperson on any committee of the Board, so long as such person is not a member of management.

Stockholder Communications with the Board

The Board will give appropriate attention to written communications that are submitted by stockholders and will respond as the Board deems appropriate. Interested parties who wish to contact an individual director, the Board as a group, or a specified Board committee or group, including the independent directors as a group, should address such communications to:

Construction Partners, Inc. c/o Secretary 290 Healthwest Drive, Suite 2 Dothan, Alabama 36303

Each communication should specify the applicable addressee(s) to be contacted, as well as the general topic of the communication. The Secretary of the Company will initially receive and process communications before forwarding them to the addressee.

EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Compensation of Executive Officers

We are an "emerging growth company" and "smaller reporting company" under applicable SEC rules and are providing disclosure regarding our executive compensation arrangements pursuant to the rules applicable to smaller reporting companies, which means that we are not required to provide a compensation discussion and analysis and certain other disclosures regarding our executive compensation.

Our executive compensation program is designed to attract, motivate and retain high-quality leadership and incentivize our executive officers to achieve performance goals over the short- and long-term, which also aligns the interests of our executive officers with those of our stockholders. The following discussion relates to the compensation of Charles E. Owens, our President and Chief Executive Officer, and our two most highly compensated executive officers during the 2018 fiscal year other than Mr. Owens: R. Alan Palmer, our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, and F. Julius Smith, III, our Senior Vice President. Messrs. Owens, Palmer and Smith are collectively referred to herein as our "named executive officers." All information presented gives pro forma effect to the Reclassification.

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth, for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, a summary of the compensation paid to or earned by our named executive officers.

Name and Principal Position	Year	Salary (\$)	Bonus (\$) ⁽¹⁾	Stock Awards (\$) ⁽²⁾	Option Awards (\$) ⁽³⁾	All Other Compensation (\$) ⁽⁴⁾	Total (\$)
Charles E. Owens	2018	450,000	1,074,000	-	-	33,041	1,557,041
President and Chief Executive Officer	2017	450,000	715,000	-	-	22,244	1,187,244
R. Alan Palmer	2018	310,000	837,000	273,014	-	34,672	1,454,686
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer	2017	307,692	360,000	-	-	24,168	691,860
F. Julius Smith, III	2018	400,000	677,000	-	-	77,289	1,154,289
Senior Vice President	2017	396,250	565,000	-	412,062	22,042	1,395,354

- (1) The amounts in this column consist of the named executive officers' respective cash bonus awards, which are awarded on a discretionary basis. In addition, for Mr. Smith, the amount shown includes \$300,000 of cash retention payments made pursuant to his employment and non-competition agreement during each of the 2017 and 2018 fiscal years.
- (2) The amount in this column represents the grant date fair value of an award of 35,280 restricted shares of our Class B common stock to Mr. Palmer on February 23, 2018, of which 17,640 shares vested on the grant date and 17,640 shares vested on July 1, 2018, computed in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718, Compensation Stock Compensation ("ASC Topic 718").
- (3) The amount in this column represents the grant date fair value of a non-plan option award granted to Mr. Smith on March 7, 2017 to purchase 74,592 shares of our Class B common stock at an exercise price of \$0.04 per share, computed in accordance with ASC Topic 718 and excluding the effect of estimated forfeiture. For assumptions used in determining the fair value of option awards, see Note 15 (Equity-Based Compensation) to our consolidated financial statements included in our Annual Report. This option represents part of the consideration paid in the Company's acquisition of FSC II, LLC ("FSC").
- (4) The amounts in this column include the following items: (a) for each of the named executive officers, the value of his personal use of a Company-owned vehicle, 401(k) plan matching contributions, mobile device subscription fees paid on the officer's behalf, and Company-paid premiums for health and life insurance; (b) for each of Messrs. Owens and Palmer, Company-paid premiums for long-term care benefits (2017 only) and long-term disability insurance; and (c) for Mr. Smith, Company-paid club dues. The value to the named executive officers of their personal use of Company-owned automobiles is based on the incremental cost to the Company of such use, which the Company has calculated as the total variable expense associated with operation of such automobiles during the applicable period.

Employment Agreements

On June 27, 2014, FSC, our indirect wholly owned subsidiary, entered into an employment and non-competition agreement with Mr. Smith, pursuant to which Mr. Smith serves as President of FSC. The initial term of the agreement continues until June 30, 2019. The agreement provides for Mr. Smith to receive during the initial term an annual base salary of not less than \$350,000 (which was increased to \$400,000 effective January 1, 2017 and to \$420,000 effective January 1, 2019). At the end of the initial term, the agreement automatically extends on a month-to-month basis, unless either party provides written notice of termination before the end of the month in which the agreement is to be terminated. In addition, Mr. Smith receives monthly retention payments of \$25,000 until June 30, 2019, unless his employment is terminated earlier by either party. Mr. Smith is eligible to receive discretionary bonuses as the Compensation Committee may determine.

Mr. Smith is eligible for the benefits and holidays offered to other FSC employees. Mr. Smith is entitled to family medical coverage and dental insurance at the expense of FSC under any health or dental insurance plan maintained by FSC for its employees, and to 15 days of paid vacation each year. Mr. Smith also is entitled to use a cellular phone provided by FSC and an FSC-provided automobile in his conduct of FSC business, for which FSC bears the maintenance costs. For as long as FSC is making retention payments to Mr. Smith, FSC will maintain and pay for a term life insurance policy on Mr. Smith's life in the amount of \$2.0 million, for which Mr. Smith may designate the beneficiaries.

Non-Plan Stock Options

On March 31, 2010, we granted non-plan stock options to Grace, Ltd., a limited partnership for which Mr. Owens serves as general partner, and to Mr. Palmer. The options provided for the purchase of 238,773 shares and 394,308 shares of our Class B common stock by Grace, Ltd. and Mr. Palmer, respectively, at an exercise price of \$5.70 per share. These options were exercised in full by Grace, Ltd. and Mr. Palmer on June 29, 2018.

On March 7, 2017, we granted a non-plan stock option to Mr. Smith. The option provides for the purchase of 74,592 shares of our Class B common stock at an exercise price of \$0.04 per share. The option was fully vested upon the date of grant, but is exercisable only during the ten-day period immediately preceding a change in control of the Company, as defined in the option agreement, which has not occurred. The option expires on the earliest of (i) the termination of Mr. Smith's services, whether as our employee, director or consultant, (ii) March 7, 2027, and (iii) the occurrence of a change in control, after which all unexercised options will be canceled.

Construction Partners, Inc. 2016 Equity Incentive Plan

On August 19, 2016, our Board adopted and our stockholders approved the Construction Partners, Inc. 2016 Equity Incentive Plan (the "2016 Equity Plan") to facilitate the recruitment and retention of employees, consultants and directors who would contribute to our long-term success and to provide incentives linked directly to increases in share value, which would inure to the benefit of all of our stockholders. As described below, the 2016 Equity Plan was amended and restated during our 2018 fiscal year and is no longer an active equity incentive plan of the Company. The 2016 Equity Plan provided for the grant of awards of options, restricted stock and restricted stock units, performance awards, stock appreciation rights and other stock-based awards, and was administered by our Compensation Committee. The maximum number of shares available for awards under the 2016 Equity Plan was 378,000 shares of our Class B common stock.

On February 23, 2018, we granted certain officers and other employees a total of 126,000 restricted shares of our Class B common stock under the 2016 Equity Plan, 63,000 of which vested on the date of grant and 63,000 of which vested on July 1, 2018. In connection with this grant, Mr. Palmer was awarded 35,280 restricted shares of our Class B common stock, of which 17,640 shares vested on the date of grant and 17,640 shares vested on July 1, 2018.

The 2016 Equity Plan provided that if an award under the 2016 Equity Plan was canceled, expired or otherwise terminated, or was forfeited or settled for cash and not in shares, then the shares subject to such award would revert to, and again be available for new awards under, the 2016 Equity Plan. As of September 30, 2018, there were no shares of our Class B common stock subject to outstanding awards or available for additional awards under the 2016 Equity Plan.

Construction Partners, Inc. 2018 Equity Incentive Plan

On April 22, 2018, our Board and a majority of our stockholders adopted an amendment and restatement of the 2016 Equity Plan and renamed it the Construction Partners, Inc. 2018 Equity Incentive Plan (the "2018 Equity Plan") pursuant to which our employees, directors and consultants (and those of our affiliates), including our named executive officers, are eligible to receive awards. The 2018 Equity Plan provides for the grant of options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units, other stock-based awards and performance awards intended to align the interests of participants with those of our stockholders.

Eligibility. Employees, non-employee directors and consultants of the Company and our affiliates are eligible to receive awards under the 2018 Equity Plan.

Administration. The 2018 Equity Plan is administered by our Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee has the power to determine when and to whom awards are granted, determine the number of shares for awards, prescribe and interpret the terms and provisions of each award agreement (the terms of which may vary), accelerate the exercise terms of an award, delegate duties under the 2018 Equity Plan and execute all other responsibilities permitted or required thereunder.

Shares Available for Issuance. Subject to adjustment in the event of any distribution, recapitalization, stock split, merger, consolidation or similar corporate event, 2,000,000 shares of our Class A common stock (the "Share Pool") are available for issuance pursuant to awards under the 2018 Equity Plan. If an award under the 2018 Equity Plan is forfeited, settled for cash or expires without the actual delivery of shares, any shares subject to such award will revert to the Share Pool and again be available for new awards under the 2018 Equity Plan.

Types of Awards.

Options. We may grant options to eligible persons, including: (i) incentive options (only to our employees or those of our affiliates) that comply with Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the "Code"); and (ii) nonqualified options that are not intended to be incentive options. The exercise price of each option granted under the 2018 Equity Plan will be stated in the award agreement and may vary; however, the exercise price for an option will not be less than the fair market value per share of our Class A common stock as of the date of grant (or 110% of the fair market value for incentive options granted to holders of more than 10% of the voting power of all classes of our and our affiliates' common stock), nor will the option be re-priced without the prior approval of our stockholders. The fair market value per share of our Class A common stock will be determined based on reported transactions on the Nasdaq Global Select Market. Options may be exercised as the Compensation Committee determines, but not later than ten years from the date of grant. The Compensation Committee will determine the methods and form of payment for the exercise price of an option (including, in the discretion of the Compensation Committee, payment by promissory note or by withholding of otherwise deliverable shares) and the methods and forms in which our Class A common stock will be delivered to a participant.

Stock Appreciation Rights. A stock appreciation right is the right to receive an amount equal to the excess of the fair market value of one share of our Class A common stock on the date of exercise over the grant price of the stock appreciation right, payable in either cash or shares of Class A common stock or any combination thereof as determined by the Compensation Committee. The per share grant price of a stock appreciation right will be determined by the Compensation Committee, but in no event will the grant price be less than the fair market value of our Class A common stock on the date of grant, determined as described for options above. The Compensation Committee will have the discretion to determine other terms and conditions of a stock appreciation rights award.

Restricted Stock Awards. A restricted stock award is a grant of shares of our Class A common stock subject to a risk of forfeiture, performance conditions, restrictions on transferability and any other restrictions imposed by the Compensation Committee in its discretion. Restrictions may lapse at such times and under such circumstances as determined by the Compensation Committee. Except as otherwise provided under the terms of the award agreement, the holder of a restricted stock award will have rights as a stockholder, including the right to vote the shares subject to the restricted stock award or to receive dividends on the shares subject to the restricted stock award during the restriction period. The Compensation Committee will provide, in the award agreement, whether the restricted stock will be forfeited upon certain terminations of employment. Unless otherwise determined by the Compensation Committee, Class A common stock distributed in connection with a stock split or stock dividend, and other property distributed as a dividend, will be subject to restrictions and a risk of forfeiture to the same extent as the restricted stock award with respect to which such Class A common stock or other property has been distributed.

Restricted Stock Units. Restricted stock units are rights to receive shares of our Class A common stock, cash or a combination of both stock and cash at the end of a specified period. The Compensation Committee may subject restricted stock units to restrictions (which may include a risk of forfeiture) to be specified in the award agreement, which restrictions may lapse at such times determined by the Compensation Committee. Restricted stock units may be settled by delivery of shares of our Class A common stock, cash equal to the fair market value of the specified number of shares covered by the restricted stock units or any combination thereof determined by the Compensation Committee at the date of grant or thereafter. The participant will not be entitled to receive dividends or dividend equivalents unless the award agreement specifically provides therefor.

Performance Awards. The vesting, exercise or settlement of awards may be subject to achievement of specified objective or subjective performance goals based on one or more business criteria set forth in the 2018 Equity Plan. The Compensation Committee may use one or more of the following criteria, which may be applied to a participant, a business unit or to us and our affiliates, in establishing performance goals for such performance awards: revenues; earnings before all or any of interest expense, taxes, depreciation and/or amortization; funds from operations; funds from operations per share; operating income; operating income per share; pre-tax or after-tax income; net cash provided by operating activities; cash available for distribution; cash available for distribution per share; working capital and components thereof; sales (net or gross) measured by product line, territory, customer or customers or other category; return on equity or average stockholders' equity; return on assets; return on capital; enterprise value or economic value added; share price performance; improvements in our attainment of expense levels; implementation or completion of critical projects; improvement in cash-flow (before or after tax); net earnings; earnings per share; earnings from continuing operations; net worth; credit rating; levels of expense, cost or liability by category, operating unit or any other delineation; any increase or decrease of one or more of the foregoing over a specified period; or the occurrence of a change in control (as defined in the 2018 Equity Plan).

The Compensation Committee may provide in any performance award for the inclusion or exclusion of the effect on reported financial results of any of the following events or occurrences: asset write-downs; litigation or claim judgments or settlements; changes in tax laws, accounting principles or other laws or provisions; reorganization or restructuring programs, including share repurchase programs; acquisitions or divestitures; foreign currency exchange translation gains or losses; any loss from a discontinued operations; goodwill impairment charges; revenue or earnings attributable to a minority ownership in another entity; any amounts accrued by us or any subsidiary pursuant to management bonus plans or cash profit-sharing plans and related employer payroll taxes for the fiscal year; any discretionary or matching contributions made to a savings and deferred profit-sharing plan or deferred compensation plan for the fiscal year; interest, expenses, taxes, depreciation and depletion, amortization and accretion charges; and gains and losses that are treated as extraordinary items. The level or levels of performance specified with respect to a performance goal may be established in absolute terms, as objectives relative to performance in prior periods, as an objective compared to the performance of one or more comparable companies or an index covering multiple companies on a per-share basis, against our performance as a whole or against one or more of our entities, segments, operating units or products, on a pre-tax or after-tax basis, in tandem with any other performance goal, or otherwise as the Compensation Committee may determine.

Other Stock-Based Awards. The Compensation Committee may grant other stock-based awards that are payable in, valued in whole or in part by reference to, or otherwise based on our Class A common stock, including, without limitation, dividend equivalent rights.

Change in Control and Other Corporate Transactions. In the event of a change in control (as defined in the 2018 Equity Plan) or certain other significant corporate transactions, outstanding awards will be treated as the Compensation Committee determines in its discretion. The Compensation Committee may (i) arrange for continuation or assumption of awards, or substitution of equivalent awards of the surviving entity or its parent; (ii) cancel awards in exchange for cash or securities in an amount equal to the value of vested awards, or to the difference between the value of the underlying shares of our Class A common stock and the exercise price for vested options and stock appreciation rights; or (iii) cancel outstanding awards without payment of any consideration, in which case participants will be given a reasonable period during which to exercise their awards.

Plan Amendment or Termination. Either our Board or our Compensation Committee may amend or terminate the 2018 Equity Plan. However, stockholder approval will be required for any amendment to the extent necessary to comply with applicable law or exchange listing rules. In addition, either our Board or our Compensation Committee may amend awards granted under the 2018 Equity Plan, but no amendment may impair the rights of a participant under any outstanding award without his or her consent. The 2018 Equity Plan will remain in effect for a period of ten years unless earlier terminated by our Board or the Compensation Committee.

Incentive Compensation Recoupment Policy

On December 6, 2018, our Board adopted a Policy for the Recoupment of Incentive Compensation (the "Recoupment Policy"), which provides that, in the event that the Company is required to prepare an accounting restatement of its financial statements due to material noncompliance with financial reporting requirements under the securities laws, we are required to use reasonable efforts to recoup from current and former executive officers any excess incentive compensation received by them during the three completed fiscal years immediately preceding the date on which we are required to prepare an accounting restatement. The Recoupment Policy is intended to comply with the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act and proposed SEC rules thereunder, which we believe represents best practice. The Recoupment Policy applies to incentive compensation (cash and equity) that is approved, awarded or granted to our executive officers on or after December 6, 2018. The Recoupment Policy applies irrespective of whether an executive officer engaged in fraud or other misconduct.

Cash and equity awards that are granted, earned or vested wholly or in part on the attainment of a financial reporting measure are subject to recoupment based on a restatement of our financial statements. We may recoup incentive compensation by (i) requiring reimbursement of cash incentive compensation previously paid, (ii) seeking recovery of any gain realized on vesting, exercise, settlement, sale, transfer or other disposition of any equity-based awards, (iii) offsetting the recouped amount from any compensation otherwise owed by us to the current or former executive officer, (iv) cancelling outstanding vested or unvested equity awards and/or (v) taking any other remedial or recovery action permitted by law. There is no time limit on our ability to recover amounts under the Recoupment Policy other than limits imposed by law, and recoupment is available to us regardless of whether the executive officer is still employed by us when repayment is required. Our Compensation Committee, designated by the Board as the administrator of the Recoupment Policy, is responsible for determining whether recoupment is required under the Recoupment Policy and for making all other determinations for the administration of the Recoupment Policy.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

The following table presents information regarding outstanding equity-based awards held by our named executive officers as of September 30, 2018.

	Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Options Exercisable	Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Options Unexercisable	Option Exercise Price	Option Expiration
Name	(#)	(#)	(\$)	Date
Charles E. Owens	-	-	-	-
R. Alan Palmer	-	-	-	-
F. Julius Smith, III	-	74,592	\$0.04	March 7, 2027 (1)

⁽¹⁾ Mr. Smith's option was granted pursuant to a written option agreement, dated March 7, 2017, and may be exercised only on the occurrence of a change in control of the Company, as defined in the option agreement. The option expires on the earliest of (i) the termination of Mr. Smith's services, whether as our employee, director or consultant, (ii) March 7, 2027, or (iii) the occurrence of a change in control of the Company, after which all unexercised options will be canceled. This option represents part of the consideration paid in the Company's acquisition of FSC.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table provides certain information regarding options and rights outstanding under our equity compensation plans as of September 30, 2018.

Plan Category	(a) Number of Securities to be Issued Upon Exercise of Outstanding Options and Rights	(b) Weighted-Average Exercise Price of Outstanding Options and Rights	(c) Number of Securities Remaining Available for Future Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans (Excluding Securities Reflected in the First Column)
Equity Compensation Plans Approved by Security Holders	-	-	2,000,000 (2)
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by Security Holders	74,952 (1)	\$0.04	-
Total	-	-	-

- (1) Represents shares of Class B common stock issuable pursuant to a non-plan option granted to Mr. Smith on March 7, 2017 that becomes exercisable only in the event of a change in control of the Company, as defined in the option agreement.
- (2) Represents shares of Class A common stock available for issuance under the 2018 Equity Plan, described above, under which no awards were issued or outstanding as of September 30, 2018.

Retirement Benefits

We do not provide defined benefit pension payments. Our named executive officers are eligible to participate in the Construction Partners Holdings, Inc. 401(k) Plan (the "401(k) Plan") on the same basis as other employees who satisfy the 401(k) Plan's eligibility requirements. As such, our named executive officers, along with other 401(k) Plan participants, are eligible for discretionary employer matching contributions and discretionary contributions. Effective January 1, 2017, all 401(k) Plan participants are eligible for employer matching contributions equal to 100% of the participant's elective deferral contributions up to 3% of the participant's compensation, plus 50% of the participant's elective deferral contributions that exceed 3% of the participant's compensation but are not more than 5% of the participant's compensation.

Potential Payments upon Termination or a Change in Control

Employment Agreements

If FSC terminates Mr. Smith's employment for any reason, with or without cause (as defined in his employment and non-competition agreement), then he will be entitled to continued payment of his retention payments of \$25,000 per month until June 30, 2019. In addition, if Mr. Smith's employment with FSC is terminated either voluntarily by Mr. Smith or by FSC for any reason except his death, then FSC has the right to elect to enforce a two-year non-compete period, pursuant to which Mr. Smith will be restricted from competing with FSC in road construction, paving, grading, asphalt and any other business activity engaged in by FSC within 75 miles of the city limits of Raleigh, North Carolina. If FSC makes such an election, then Mr. Smith will be entitled to monthly non-compete payments equal to his then-current monthly base salary for the 24-month non-compete period.

Option Agreement

As described above under the heading "Non-Plan Stock Options," Mr. Smith has an option to purchase 74,592 shares of our Class B common stock at an exercise price of \$0.04 per share during the ten-day period immediately preceding a change in control of the Company, as described in the option agreement. This option represents part of the consideration paid in the Company's acquisition of FSC.

Role of Executive Officers in Determining Executive Compensation

The Compensation Committee makes all compensation decisions related to our named executive officers. Our Chief Executive Officer regularly provides information and recommendations to the Compensation Committee on the performance of the executive officers and appropriate levels and components of compensation, as well as other information that the Compensation Committee may request. However, our Chief Executive Officer does not participate in any Compensation Committee deliberations or determinations with respect to his own compensation.

Role of Compensation Consultant in Determining Executive Compensation

Under its charter, the Compensation Committee has the authority to retain its own compensation consultant. During the first quarter of our 2018 fiscal year, prior to our initial public offering, the Compensation Committee retained Ernst & Young LLP ("Ernst & Young") to review, assess and provide input on certain aspects of our compensation program for executive officers in connection with the Company's transition to becoming a public company. In particular, Ernst & Young examined the overall pay mix for our executive officers, conducted a competitive assessment of our executive compensation program, and made recommendations to the Compensation Committee on compensation design and competitive market levels. The Company paid Ernst & Young approximately \$41,000 for these services. The information furnished by Ernst & Young was one factor that the Compensation Committee used in making decisions about executive compensation during the 2018 fiscal year.

During the 2018 fiscal year, Ernst & Young and its affiliates did not provide any additional services to the Company, but did provide tax preparation and consultation services to SunTx, the Company's controlling stockholder, for which SunTx paid approximately \$319,000. The decision to engage Ernst & Young for the services provided to SunTx was not made or recommended by the Company's management, and neither the Compensation Committee nor the Board approved such services. The Compensation Committee believes that, given the limited duration and scope of Ernst & Young's engagement by the Company and the unrelated nature of the services that Ernst & Young provided to SunTx, Ernst & Young did not have any relationships or other economic interests at the time that it provided services to the Company that would impair its ability to provide independent advice concerning executive and director compensation matters.

Director Compensation

2018 Fiscal Year Compensation. During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, our directors were not compensated for their service on the Board, except for Michael H. McKay, who received an annual cash retainer of \$60,000. However, the Company did reimburse all ordinary and necessary expenses incurred by our directors in the conduct of the Board's business. Mr. Owens, our President and Chief Executive Officer, was not compensated for his service on the Board during fiscal year 2018. The compensation received by Mr. Owens for his service as the Company's President and Chief Executive Officer is set forth above under the heading "Summary Compensation Table."

The following table summarizes the compensation of our non-employee directors during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018.

Name	Fees Earned or Paid in Cash (\$)	Total (\$)
Ned N. Fleming, III	-	-
Craig Jennings	-	-
Mark R. Matteson	-	-
Michael H. McKay	60,000	60,000
Stefan L. Shaffer	-	-
David Webb (1)	-	-

⁽¹⁾ Mr. Webb resigned from his position as a member of our Board on November 15, 2017 and was replaced by independent Board member Stefan L. Shaffer.

2019 Fiscal Year Compensation. In December 2018, our Board approved a new annual retainer framework for Board members. Beginning in the 2019 fiscal year, the Executive Chairman receives an annual retainer of \$275,000, and each of the other non-employee directors receives an annual retainer of \$110,000. The retainer is payable in cash or equity. Directors who are also employees of the Company will not receive any additional compensation for their service on the Board. The Company will reimburse all ordinary and necessary expenses incurred by our directors in the conduct of the Board's business.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Review and Approval of Related Party Transactions

On April 22, 2018, our Board adopted a written policy for the review, approval and ratification of transactions with related parties. The policy covers transactions between the Company and any of our executive officers and directors or their respective affiliates, director nominees, 5% or greater security holders or family members of any of the foregoing. Our Audit Committee reviews transactions covered by this policy to determine, among other things:

- whether the terms of the transaction are fair to the Company, have resulted from arm's length negotiations and are on terms at least as favorable as would apply if
 the transaction did not involve a related party;
- whether there are demonstrable business reasons for the Company to enter into the transaction;
- whether the transaction is material to the Company;
- the role the related party played in arranging the transaction:
- whether the transaction could impair the independence of a director;
 and
- the interests of all related parties in the transaction

A related party transaction will only be approved or ratified by the Audit Committee if the Audit Committee determines that the transaction is beneficial to the Company and the terms of the transaction are fair to the Company.

Historically, our management and Board have reviewed and approved related party transactions. The terms of the related party transactions and agreements described below were determined by and among affiliated entities and, consequently, are not necessarily the result of arm's length negotiations. Although it is possible that we could have negotiated more favorable terms for such transactions with unrelated third parties, our management and Board believe that the terms of the related party transactions described below are reasonable, fair and beneficial to the Company.

Transactions with Related Parties

We have engaged in, and continue to engage in, related party transactions with certain current and former directors, members of management and beneficial holders of more than 5% of our common stock. The following summarizes certain transactions with these related parties.

Management Services Agreement

Construction Partners Holdings, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company ("CPHI"), is a party to a management services agreement with SunTx Capital Management Corp. ("SunTx Capital Management"), an affiliate of SunTx. Pursuant to the agreement, SunTx Capital Management provides management services to CPHI, including management services with respect to financing, business strategies and business development, in return for a monthly fee of \$83,333, plus an amount not exceeding 2% of the total value of any acquisition, disposition, debt or equity financings by CPHI and out-of-pocket expenses. For these management services, CPHI paid SunTx Capital Management approximately \$1.3 million and \$1.5 million during the fiscal years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, respectively. The management services agreement expires on October 1, 2023.

Registration Rights Agreement

We are a party to a registration rights agreement (the "Registration Rights Agreement") with certain related parties, including (i) SunTx CPI Expansion Fund, L.P., SunTx Fulcrum Fund Prime, L.P., SunTx Fulcrum Dutch Investors Prime, L.P., and Grace, Ltd., each of which owns more than 5% of our Class B common stock, (ii) Michael H. McKay, a director of the Company, and (iii) R. Alan Palmer and John L. Harper, executive officers of the Company (collectively, together with the other parties to the Registration Rights Agreement, the "RRA Holders"). Pursuant to the Registration Rights Agreement, we are required to register under the Securities Act of 1933 (the "Securities Act") shares of our common stock owned by such RRA Holders (the "Registrable Securities") upon their request under certain circumstances. Specifically, subject to certain restrictions, RRA Holders who own at least 20% of our outstanding Registrable Securities may demand that we register at least 50% of the aggregate number of Registrable Securities owned by such requesting RRA Holders. We are not obligated to file a registration statement pursuant to these demand provisions on more than two occasions on Form S-1. However, the RRA Holders are entitled to make an unlimited number of demands for registration on Form S-3, subject to the limitation that the Company will not be obligated to file more than one registration statement on Form S-3 in response to a registration demand within six months after the effective date of any registration statement that we file in response to a registration demand.

The RRA Holders have "piggyback" registration rights as well. Accordingly, if, at any time, we propose to register an offering of our securities, either for our account or for the account of our other stockholders, we must give written notice to the RRA Holders to allow each to include its shares in the registration, subject to certain marketing and other limitations.

The registration rights are subject to certain conditions and limitations, including the right of the underwriters to limit the number of Registrable Securities to be included in a particular registration and our right to delay or withdraw the registration statement under certain circumstances. We generally will pay all registration expenses in connection with our obligations under the Registration Rights Agreement. The Registration Rights Agreement provides that we will indemnify the RRA Holders against certain liabilities that may arise under the Securities Act and expires on May 4, 2023.

Indemnification Agreements

We have entered into indemnification agreements with us in substantially similar form. The indemnification agreements generally provide, among other things, that we will indemnify and hold harmless each person subject to such agreement (each, an "indemnitee") to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law from and against all expenses, losses, damages, judgments, fines and other specified costs that may result or arise in connection with such indemnitee serving in his or her capacity as a director or executive officer of the Company or serving at our direction as a director, officer, employee or agent of another entity. These agreements further provide that, upon an indemnitee's request and subject to certain conditions, we will advance expenses to the indemnitee. Pursuant to the indemnification agreements, an indemnitee is presumed to be entitled to indemnification, and we have the burden of proving otherwise. The indemnification agreements also provide that, to the extent that we maintain an insurance policy providing liability insurance for directors, officers, employees, agents or fiduciaries of the Company, indemnitees shall be covered by such policy to the maximum extent of the available coverage. The foregoing is only a brief description of the indemnification agreements, does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Company's form of indemnification agreement, which previously has been filed with the SEC.

Other Transactions

On December 31, 2017, we sold an indirect wholly owned subsidiary to Reid Smith, the brother of F. Julius Smith, III, our Senior Vice President, in consideration for a note receivable in the amount of approximately \$1.0 million, which approximated the net book value of the disposed entity. In connection with this transaction, we also received a note receivable from the disposed entity in the amount of approximately \$1.0 million, representing certain accounts payable of the disposed entity that we had previously paid on its behalf. During the 2018 fiscal year, the largest aggregate amount of principal outstanding was the initial principal balance at origination, and the amount of principal paid on each note was \$163,234 and \$88,017, respectively. As of September 30, 2018, the remaining principal balance of each note was approximately \$0.9 million. Each note bears simple interest at a rate of two percent per year, but no interest payments were made on either note during our 2018 fiscal year. Principal and interest payments have been, and will be, made in periodic installments from January 2018 through September 2026.

Since January 30, 2015, FSC has been a party to a master services subcontract with Austin Trucking, LLC ("Austin Trucking"), an entity owned by Jacob R. Austin, the brother-in-law of F. Julius Smith, III, our Senior Vice President. Pursuant to the agreement, Austin Trucking performs subcontract work for FSC, including trucking services. During the fiscal years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, FSC incurred costs of approximately \$11.8 million and \$13.0 million, respectively, for these subcontract services. As of September 30, 2017 and 2018, we had approximately \$1.0 million and \$0.8 million, respectively, due to Austin Trucking reflected in accounts payable.

FSC provides construction services to various companies owned by Fred J. Smith, Jr., the father of F. Julius Smith, III, our Senior Vice President. During the fiscal years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, we earned approximately \$5.2 million and \$1.7 million, respectively, for these services. As of September 30, 2017 and 2018, we had \$4.2 million and \$2.7 million, respectively, due from these companies reflected in contracts receivable.

FSC pays a consulting fee to FSC III, LLC, an entity owned by Fred J. Smith, Jr., the father of F. Julius Smith, III, our Senior Vice President. During each of the fiscal years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, FSC paid approximately \$0.2 million in consulting fees to this entity.

FSC rents vehicles on a month-to-month basis from Fred Smith Company, an entity owned by Fred J. Smith, Jr., the father of F. Julius Smith, III, our Senior Vice President. During each of the fiscal years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, FSC paid Fred Smith Company approximately \$1.2 million for these rentals.

From time to time, Providence Construction Services, LLC ("Providence"), an entity owned by Reid Smith, the brother of F. Julius Smith, III, our Senior Vice President, provides subcontracting services to FSC. During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, we paid approximately \$0.2 million for these services, and we owed approximately \$52,000 to Providence as of September 30, 2018, as reflected in accounts payable. We did not incur any expenses or have any amounts outstanding to Providence during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017.

Prior to its acquisition by Construction Partners, Inc., FSC advanced funds to an entity owned by Fred J. Smith, Jr., the father of F. Julius Smith, III, our Senior Vice President, in connection with a land development project. The obligations of the borrower entity to repay the advances are guaranteed by a separate entity owned by Fred J. Smith, Jr. and secured by 140,389 shares of the Company's Class B common stock that are owned by the guarantor entity. Amounts outstanding under the advances do not bear interest and must be repaid in full no later than March 17, 2021. During each of the fiscal years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, the amount outstanding under the advances was \$773,770.

For periodic corporate events, we charter a boat from Deep South Adventures, LLC, an entity owned by John L. Harper, our Senior Vice President. During the fiscal years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, we paid Deep South Adventures, LLC approximately \$0.3 million and \$33,000, respectively, for these charter services.

WCC leases office space for its Dothan, Alabama office from H&K, Ltd., an entity partly owned by John L. Harper, our Senior Vice President, for which Mr. Harper also serves as general partner. The office space is leased through January 1, 2020. Under the lease agreement, WCC pays a fixed minimum rent of \$7,000 per month. During each of the fiscal years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, WCC paid H&K, Ltd. \$84,000 pursuant to the terms of the lease agreement.

In September 2018, WCC purchased a building for its Montgomery, Alabama office from H&A Properties LLC, an entity owned by John L. Harper and M. Brett Armstrong, two of our Senior Vice Presidents, for \$487,500. Prior to the purchase, WCC leased space in the building from H&A Properties LLC. Under the lease agreement, WCC paid a fixed minimum rent of \$5,500 per month. During the fiscal years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, WCC paid total rent of \$66,000 and \$60,500, respectively, to H&A Properties LLC pursuant to the terms of the lease agreement. The payments during the 2018 fiscal year represent rent for the eleven months of the fiscal year prior to the date on which WCC purchased the building.

In November 2017, WCC hired Brandi Harper, the wife of John L. Harper, our Senior Vice President, as General Counsel. From her hire date through September 30, 2018, WCC paid Brandi Harper \$206,346 in connection with her employment with WCC. Prior to her hire date, Harper Law Firm, LLC, a law firm owned by Brandi Harper, provided legal services to WCC. During the fiscal years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, WCC paid Harper Law Firm, LLC approximately \$268,000 and \$58,000, respectively, as compensation for this legal work.

Brandon Owens, the son of Charles E. Owens, our President and Chief Executive Officer, serves as the Vice President of Operations of WCC. During the fiscal years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, WCC paid Brandon Owens \$337,538 and \$352,500, respectively, in connection with his employment with WCC.

J. Gregory (Greer) Walker, the son of John A. Walker, our Senior Vice President, serves as a Chief Estimator and Project Manager of WCC. During the fiscal years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, WCC paid Greer Walker \$121,940 and \$125,852, respectively, in connection with his employment with WCC.

Since June 1, 2014, CPHI has been a party to an access agreement with Island Pond Corporate Services, LLC ("Island Pond") regarding certain property owned by affiliates of Ned N. Fleming, III, the Executive Chairman of our Board and Managing Partner of SunTx. Pursuant to the agreement, Island Pond has granted CPHI the non-exclusive right to use certain land located in Baker County, Georgia for the purpose of business development. CPHI paid Island Pond \$320,000 during each of the fiscal years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, pursuant to the terms of the agreement.

Nelson Fleming, the son of Ned N. Fleming, III, the Executive Chairman of our Board and Managing Partner of SunTx, serves as our Director of Acquisition and Strategy Development. During the fiscal years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, we paid Nelson Fleming \$95,750 and \$413,750, respectively, in connection with his employment. In addition, on February 23, 2018, Nelson Fleming was granted 35,280 restricted shares of our Class B common stock, all of which have vested. The value of these shares of restricted stock on the grant date was approximately \$274,478, or \$7.78 per share. The foregoing information gives effect to the Reclassification.

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires our directors and officers and persons who beneficially own more than 10% of any class of our equity securities to file with the SEC reports of ownership and changes in ownership of the Company's common stock held by them. Copies of these reports must also be provided to the Company. Based on our review of these reports, we believe that, during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, all such reports that were required to be filed were filed on a timely basis.

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Board is currently composed of three directors, two of whom satisfy the heightened independence requirements specified in SEC rules. All members of the Audit Committee are financially literate, as that qualification has been interpreted by the Company's Board in its business judgment, and at least one member of the Audit Committee qualifies as an "audit committee financial expert," as that term is defined by the SEC. The Audit Committee operates under a written charter, which became effective on April 22, 2018.

The Audit Committee hereby submits the following report:

- The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed with management the Company's audited consolidated financial statements as of, and for the fiscal year ended, September 30, 2018.
- The Audit Committee has discussed with the Company's independent registered public accountants, RSM, the matters required to be discussed by Public Company Accounting Oversight Board ("PCAOB") Auditing Standard No. 1301, Communications with Audit Committees (as amended), as well as all other matters required to be discussed with the independent auditors by applicable PCAOB standards.
- The Audit Committee has received and reviewed the written disclosures and the letter from RSM required by applicable rules of the PCAOB regarding RSM's
 communications with the Audit Committee concerning independence, and has discussed with RSM their independence.

Based on the review and discussions referred to above, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board that the financial statements referred to above be included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018 for filing with the SEC.

Audit Committee:

Mark R. Matteson, *Chairperson*Michael H. McKay
Stefan L. Shaffer

PROPOSAL 1 ELECTION OF CLASS I DIRECTORS

Upon the recommendation of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, the Board has nominated the following individuals for election as Class I directors of the Company to serve for a three-year term expiring at the 2022 annual meeting of stockholders:

Charles E. Owens

Ned N. Fleming, III

Unless a stockholder instructs otherwise, shares represented by properly submitted proxies will be voted **FOR**" the election of the director nominees listed above. The Board anticipates that the nominees listed above will be able to serve, but if any nominee should be unable or unwilling to serve, proxies will be voted for a substitute selected by the Board.

The Board unanimously recommends that the stockholders vote "FOR" each of the nominees named above.

PROPOSAL 2 RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

The Audit Committee has selected RSM US LLP ("RSM") as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2019. Stockholder ratification of the appointment is not required under Delaware law, but the Board has decided to ascertain the position of the Company's stockholders on the appointment. The Audit Committee and the Board believe that the continued retention of RSM as the Company's independent registered public accountants is in the best interest of the Company and its stockholders. If the appointment of RSM is not ratified, the Audit Committee will reconsider its appointment of RSM. The affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by the stockholders present in person or by proxy at the Annual Meeting and entitled to vote is required for ratification.

General

RSM has audited our financial statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018 and has served as our independent registered public accounting firm since June 2017. It is expected that a representative of RSM will be present at the Annual Meeting to respond to appropriate questions and will be given the opportunity to make a statement if he or she so desires.

Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policy

On April 22, 2018, our Board adopted a policy for the pre-approval of audit and non-audit services performed by the independent registered public accountants (the "Pre-Approval Policy"), pursuant to which the Audit Committee generally is required to pre-approve the audit and permissible non-audit services performed by the independent registered public accountants in order to assure that the provision of such services does not impair the accountants' independence. The Audit Committee considers non-audit fees and services when assessing the accountants' independence. Unless a type of service to be provided by the independent registered public accountants has received general pre-approval, the service will require specific pre-approval by the Audit Committee. Any amounts invoiced for services rendered that materially exceed preapproved cost levels will require specific approval by the Audit Committee prior to the payment of such invoice. On an annual basis, the Audit Committee may pre-approve specific services that are expected to be provided to the Company by the independent registered public accountants during the following twelve months. The most recent preapproval occurred in August 2018. The Audit Committee may delegate pre-approval authority to one or more of its members, who in turn must report any pre-approval decisions to the Audit Committee at its next scheduled meeting.

Change in Accountants

In June 2017, we retained RSM as our independent registered public accounting firm and dismissed our prior independent registered public accounting firm, PBMares, LLP ("PBMares"). The decision to dismiss PBMares and appoint RSM was approved by our Board, effective as of June 19, 2017. Subsequent to the appointment of RSM, we engaged RSM to re-audit our consolidated financial statements as of and for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2015 and 2016, which had previously been audited by PBMares.

The reports of PBMares on our consolidated financial statements as of and for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2015 and 2016 did not contain any adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion and were not qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit scope or accounting principles. During the two most recent fiscal years preceding our discharge of PBMares and the subsequent interim period through June 19, 2017, we had no "disagreements" (as defined in Item 304(a)(1)(iv) of Regulation S-K and the related instructions thereto) with PBMares on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure or auditing scope or procedure, which disagreements, if not resolved to the satisfaction of PBMares, would have caused PBMares to make reference in connection with its opinion to the subject matter of the disagreement during its audit of our consolidated financial statements for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2015 and 2016. During the two most recent fiscal years preceding our discharge of PBMares and the subsequent interim period through June 19, 2017, there were no "reportable events" (as defined in Item 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation S-K and the related instructions thereto).

During the two fiscal years ended September 30, 2016 and through the period ended June 19, 2017, we did not consult with RSM with respect to the application of accounting principles to a specified transaction, either completed or proposed, the type of audit opinion that might be rendered on our financial statements, or any other matter that was the subject of a disagreement or a reportable event (each as defined above). Moreover, neither a written report nor oral advice was provided to the Company that RSM concluded was an important factor considered by the Company in reaching a decision as to any accounting, auditing or financial reporting issue.

We have previously provided PBMares with a copy of the foregoing disclosure and requested that PBMares furnish us with a letter addressed to the SEC stating whether or not PBMares agrees with the above statements and, if not, stating the respects in which it does not agree. A copy of the letter, dated January 26, 2018, furnished by PBMares in response to that request, was filed as Exhibit 16.1 to our Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-224174), filed with the SEC on April 6, 2018.

Fees Paid to RSM

The following table presents fees for professional services rendered by RSM for the audit of the Company's annual financial statements for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, and fees billed for other services rendered by RSM during those periods, including out-of-pocket expenses.

		2018	2017
Audit Fees	\$	1,942,249	\$ 1,075,266
Audit-Related Fees		0	0
Tax Fees		0	0
All Other Fees		0	0
TOTAL	\$	1,942,249	\$ 1,075,266

Audit Fees. This category includes fees for professional services related to the audit of the Company's financial statements and review of financial statements included in the Company's Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, as well as services that are normally provided by RSM in connection with statutory and regulatory filings. Specifically, the amounts in the table above represent fees and expenses related to (i) the audit of the Company's annual financial statements for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, (ii) review of the Company's interim financial statements and related disclosures included in periodic reports filed with the SEC, (iii) work performed in connection with the Company's registration statements filed during the 2018 fiscal year, and (iv) audit services related to subsidiary-level financial data of our operating companies for submission to, and for purposes of qualifying our operating companies to perform work with, various state Departments of Transportation.

Audit-Related Fees. This category includes fees billed for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of the Company's financial statements and are not included in Audit Fees. There were no such fees for the 2018 or 2017 fiscal years.

Tax Fees. This category includes fees billed for professional services related to tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning. RSM did not render any such services to the Company during the 2018 or 2017 fiscal years beyond its audit of our income tax accruals.

All Other Fees. This category includes fees billed to the Company for products and services provided by RSM that do not fall into one of the other three categories above. There were no such fees during the 2018 or 2017 fiscal years.

The Board unanimously recommends that the stockholders vote "FOR" Proposal 2.

OTHER MATTERS

As of the date of this Proxy Statement, the Board does not know of any business that will be presented for consideration at the Annual Meeting other than as specified herein and in the Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders, but if other matters are presented, it is the intention of the persons designated as proxies to vote in accordance with their judgment on such matters.

DEADLINE FOR STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS

In order for a proposal by a stockholder of the Company to be eligible to be included in the proxy statement and form of proxy for the 2020 annual meeting of stockholders pursuant to the proposal process prescribed by SEC Rule 14a-8, the proposal must be received by the Secretary of the Company at Construction Partners, Inc., 290 Healthwest Drive, Suite 2, Dothan, Alabama 36303, on or before September 24, 2019.

If a stockholder proposal is submitted outside the proposal process mandated by SEC Rule 14a-8, and is submitted instead under the advance notice provision of the Company's amended and restated by-laws, the proposal must be received by the Secretary of the Company at 290 Healthwest Drive, Suite 2, Dothan, Alabama 36303 not earlier than November 9, 2019 or later than December 9, 2019, together with the necessary supporting documentation required under that by-law provision.

ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

You may receive a copy of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018 without charge by sending a written request to Construction Partners, Inc., 290 Healthwest Drive, Suite 2, Dothan, Alabama 36303, Attention: Secretary.



VOTE BY INTERNET - www.proxyvote.com
Use the internet to transmit your voting instructions and for electronic deliwery of information until 11.59 p.m. Eastern Time the day before the meeting date. Have your proxy card in hand when you access the website, and follow the instructions to obtain your records and to create an electronic voting instruction form.

VOTE BY PHONE - 1-800-690-6903

VOIE BY PHONE - 1-800-900-900; Use any touch hone telephone to transmit your voting instructions until 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time the day before the meeting date. Have your proxy card in hand when you call and then follow the instructions.

VOTE BY MAIL
Mark, sign and date your proxy card and return it in the postage-paid
envelope we have provided or return it to Construction Partners, Inc.,
c/o Broadridge, 51 Mercedes Way, Edgewood, NY 11717.

ELECTRONIC DELIVERY OF FUTURE COMMUNICATIONS

ELECTRONIC DELIVERY OF FUTURE COMMUNICATIONS
If you would like to reduce the costs incurred by Construction Partners, Inc.
in mailing proxy materials, you can consent to receiving future proxy statements,
proxy cards and annual reports electronically via e-mail or the internet. To sign
up for electronic delivery, please follow the instructions above to vote using
the internet and, when prompted, indicate that you agree to receive or access
stockholder communications electronically in future years.

TO VOTE, MARK BLOCKS BELOW IN BLUE OR BLACK INK AS FOLLOWS: E55341-P16020 KEEP THIS PORTION FOR YOUR RECORDS
EN SIGNED AND DATED. DETACH AND RETURN THIS PORTION ONLY THIS PROXY CARD IS VALID ONLY WHEN SIGNED AND DATED. CONSTRUCTION PARTNERS, INC. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE "FOR" EACH OF THE NOMINEES IN PROPOSAL 1 AND "FOR" PROPOSAL 2. Proposal to elect two Class I directors to serve for a three-year term expiring at the 2022 annual meeting of stockholders. Withhold Nominees: For 0 01) Ned N. Fleming, III 0 0 0 For Against Abstain 02) Charles E. Owens Proposal to ratify the appointment of RSM US LLP as the Company's independent registered public accountants for the fiscal year ending
September 30, 2019. Π Π The shares represented by this proxy, when properly executed, will be voted in the manner directed herein by the undersigned stockholder(s). If no direction is made, this proxy will be voted FOR each of the nominees in Proposal 1 and FOR Proposal 2. If any other matters properly come before the meeting, the persons named in this proxy will vote in their discretion. For address changes and/or comments, please check this box and write them on the back where indicated. 0 Please indicate whether you plan to attend this meeting. No Yes Please sign your name exactly as it appears on this proxy card. When signing as attorney, executor, administrator, trustee or guardian, please add your title as such. When signing as joint tenants, all parties in the joint tenancy must sign. If a signer is a corporation, please sign in full corporate name by duly authorized officer. Signature [PLEASE SIGN WITHIN BOX] Signature (Joint Owners)

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting:
The Notice and Proxy Statement and Annual Report are available at www.proxyvote.com.

E55342-P16020

CONSTRUCTION PARTNERS, INC. **ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS** THIS PROXY IS SOLICITED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The stockholder(s) hereby appoint(s) Ned N. Fleming, III, Charles E. Owens and R. Alan Palmer, or any of them, as proxies, each with the power to appoint his substitute, and hereby authorize(s) them to represent and to vote, as designated on the reverse side of this ballot, all of the shares of common stock of Construction Partners, Inc. that the stockholder(s) is/are entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held at 9:00 a.m., Central Time, on March 8, 2019, at the Hilton Garden Inn, located at 171 Hospitality Lane, Dothan, Alabama 36303, and any adjournment or postponement thereof.

THIS PROXY, WHEN PROPERLY EXECUTED, WILL BE VOTED AS DIRECTED BY THE STOCKHOLDER(S). IF NO SUCH DIRECTIONS ARE GIVEN, THIS PROXY WILL BE VOTED FOR THE ELECTION OF EACH OF THE NOMINEES AND FOR PROPOSAL 2 LISTED ON THE REVERSE SIDE.

PLEASE MARK, SIGN, DATE AND RETURN THIS PROXY CARD PROMPTLY USING THE ENCLOSED REPLY ENVELOPE.

Address Changes/Comments:	

(If you noted any Address Changes/Comments above, please mark corresponding box on the reverse side.)

CONTINUED AND TO BE SIGNED ON REVERSE SIDE